Combhairle Cathrach
' Bhaile Atha Cliath
i Dublin City Council

NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE ENVIRONMENT SPC
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2.,

ON WEDNESDAY, 23 SEPTEMBER 2015 AT 4.00 PM

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, 23 SEPTEMBER 2015

PAGE

1 Minutes of the meeting held on 24th June 2015 1-6
2 Chairpersons Business
3 Correspondence
4 Low Carbon Cement - Andrew McGrane 7-26
5 Climate Change Strategy 27 -50
6 Waste Policy 51 - 56

Bulky Household Waste Collection Service

Litter Management Plan 2015 — 2018 update

Household Waste Collection Regulations/Bag Collections
7 Response to Community Gain Fund Report - Joe McCarthy 57 - 68
8 Dublin Waste to Energy update report 69 - 106
9 SPC reporting to wider Council on DWtE Project
10 A.O.B.



This page is intentionally left blank



W Combhairle Cathract
Bhaile Atha Cliath

i * Dublin Gty Council

Minutes of the Meeting Environment Strategic Policy Committee,
held on 23" September 2015.

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 24" June 2015.
e  Minutes to be amended to reflect the discussion between Mr. McCarthy & Mr.
Fitzpatrick in relation to PM10 & PM2.5 monitoring (Item 8)
e Topics of Urban Agricultural Support & Parks Use and Management to be included in
City Development Plan minute. (Item 5)
e DCC website to be uploaded with SPC meeting Agenda, Minutes and associated
documentation
e Cllr O'Moore disputed the assertion from Jerry Grant Irish Water that the metering
program was not a factor in the lead problem in Raheny.
Order: Noted

2. Chairpersons Business

It was agreed to hold a workshop on 14™ October to develop a submission from the SPC in
relation to the City Development Plan

Order: Noted
3. Correspondence
Letter from DECLG regarding waste bye- laws
Order: Noted
4, Low Carbon Cement — Andrew McGrane
Order: Presentation Noted.
5. Climate Change Strategy
Members thanked Dr. Wardell for his presentation and raised the following points.
e The Strategy should be knitted into Local Area and City Development Plans.
e Can the revised strategy be completed by 2016.

e Carbon Exchanges / Carbon Credits
e Can targets be met, 3% reduction per year until 2020

Page 1



Dr. Wardell pointed out that although carbon credits are the least preferred option they are
legitimate and Ireland has legally binding commitments that if not met penalties will issue. In
terms of the target of 3% reduction in energy use per annum most of the easy options have
been exhausted and it will take a concerted effort to continue the progress made, but it can
be achieved.

A plan will be put in place by the subcommittee which will indicated how long it will take to
develop the plan.

Order: Presentation Noted. Climate Change Strategy Subcommittee to be established
comprising Councillor Byrne, Councillor O’Brien & Sectoral Member Nicholas
Cloake.

6. Waste Policy

Bulky Household Waste Collection Service

Members raised concerns regarding the introduction of the new service and discontinuation
of the current bulky household waste collection service:

e There is some merit in a charge but a revised scheme could be run in tandem with
an annual free collection service

e The current service is very popular and should not be discontinued

e There should be on onus on manufacturers / suppliers to take back bulky household
items similar to WEEE

e  Truck not turning up as scheduled

e When a customer avails of this scheme what safeguards are in place to prevent
additional items being presented for collection

e The profile of people who will use this service will generally be those without
transport and the charge is therefore expensive

e Charging could in fact increase the incidents of illegal dumping.

The Executive Manager pointed out that it is not good environmental practice to have trucks
driving around housing estates collection bulky household waste. This is totally contrary to
the polluter pays principle. Furthermore in the context of current budgetary constraints it is
no longer justifiable to provide this service for free as those most in need (DCC tenants) will
continue to be provided a service by Housing Maintenance.

Councillors can consider this matter further in the context of the budgetary discussions that
will take place.

Order: Report Noted

Litter Management Plan 2015 — 2018 update

Order: Report Noted, Draft Litter Management Plan to be presented to the Committee
at the November Meeting for consideration.

Household Waste Collection Regulations / Bag Collections

Page 2



e Query raised about areas currently on bag collection where the refuse collection
vehicles do not have access
The Executive Manager advised that guidelines are awaited from the DECLG on how such
areas are dealt with.

Order: Report Noted
7. Response to Community Gain Fund {(CGF) Report - Joe McCarthy
The Executive Manager in response to Mr. McCarthy’s report made the following points.

e The central point at issue is the calculation of the community gain fund - is it 3% of
the overall cost or 3% of the construction cost of the facility

e The CGF was introduced by the Council and is without precedent. DCC stated quite
clearly in the EIS that the fund would be 3% of the construction cost of the facility
which at that stage was €266m which equated to €8m

e The CGF was put forward by DCC and not An Bord Pleanala

e The CGF figure has been updated based on the current construction costs (€346m)
and now stands at €10.38m

e An Bord Pleanala in their findings accepted the €8m but changed the calculation of
the annual contribution.

Mr. Joe McCarthy, An Taisce summarised his report as set out below.

e The essence of the challenge to the Community Gain fund report is to distinguish
between capital cost and construction cost.

e The entire set of references at the Bord Pleanala hearing was on the Capital Cost &
the Inspector clarified that it was to be 3% of the capital cost and not €8m.

e An Bord Pleanala did not refer to the €8m except what was in referenced in Mr.
Coll's evidence.

e The Bord decided that it would be 3% of the Capital Cost of the facility.

e |t has been stated by the Chief Executive and Covanta that the capital cost is €500m

e DCC proposed 3% of the Capital Cost in 4 places in the EIS.

e Ifit had been intended to be 3% of the construction cost it would have been so
stated.

e Interest should also be included in the Capital cost in accordance with the
Department of Finance instructions.

e  Mr. McCarthy queried who is responsible for meeting Condition 3 of the planning
permission; who then raises the appropriate Section 160 to ensure that Condition 3
is complied with.

e The reference to capital/construction costs should be removed from DCC’s report.

e Mr. McCarthy also queried the status of the 2 identified flagship projects associated
with the CGF.

The Executive Manager quoted specifically from the EIS “DCC proposes that the fund should
comprise of a once off capital contribution of 3% of the capital cost of the facility and an
annual revenue contribution of 0.5% of the annual revenues generated by gate fees subject
to a maximum of €500,000. Based on an estimated construction cost of €266m the capital
contribution will be in the order of €8m”

Page 3



The Executive Manger further explained that 2 flagship projects were in the initial need
assessment and it is up to the Community Gain fund committee to decide what projects are
funded.

Members thanked Mr. McCarthy for his report.

The Chairperson summed up that agreement could not be reached on how the value of the
CGF is determined and it was agreed the he would write to An Board Pleanala seeking advice
on the interpretation of Condition 3 of the planning permission.

Order: Chair to write to An Bord Pleanala seeking guidance on the specific interpretation
of Condition 3 of the planning permission.

8. Dublin Waste to Energy update report.

It was agreed that the item would be taken in detail at a Special Meeting on the 14™. Joe
McCarthy tabled the following questions for consideration at that meeting:

e Location of the new local office
e Source of waste
e Dust and air quality including permanent monitoring campaign

Order: Iltem not completed and to be dealt with at a Special Meeting on 14" October 2015
9. SPC reporting to wider Council on DWLE project.
Order: Item not reached and to be dealt with at a Special Meeting on 14™ October 2015

10. A.O.B.

Clir Mannix Flynn requested a report on the dumping of silt in Dublin Bay.
Joe McCarthy requested a presentation on Air Quality as an agenda item for the next SPC
meeting including proposals (if any) to update the Air Quality Management Plan.

None

Attendance

Members

Councillor Naoise O Muiri {Chairperson)
Councillor Catherine Ardagh

Councillor Claire Byrne

Councillor Mannix Flynn

Councillor Andrew Keegan

Councillor Ciaran O’Moore

Councillor Michael O’'Brien

Nicholas Cloake - Dublin Docklands Business Forum
Joe McCarthy - An Taisce

Robert Mass - Dublin City Community Forum

Page 4



Apologies

Lord Mayor Christy Burke

Councillor Denise Mitchell

Sinead O’Brien - Environmental Pillar

Absent

Councillor Declan Flanagan

Councillor Brid Smith

Louise McCann - Disability Federation of Ireland

Officials

Declan Wallace, Director of Traffic

Brian Hanney, Senior Executive Officer
Helen McNamara, Senior Executive Officer
Hugh Coughlan, Administrative Officer
James Nolan, Executive Engineer

Ciaran McGoldrick, Staff Officer

Owen Sweeney, Staff Officer

City of Dublin Energy Management Agency
Dr. Gerry Wardell

Councillor Naoise 0’Muiri
Chairperson
30" September 2015

Page 5



Page 6



Low Carbon Cement




Familiar Structures

g abed

Convention Centre,
Dublin City

) Ros:erett Brldge |
Dublin Citv

%m%%.dils

Father Collins Park,
Dublin

Boyne Valley Bridge,
Meath

Aviva Stadium,

Dubl/n



What is the issue?

== 2 types of carbon and energy

. Operational Carbon & Energy:

A Carbon dioxide & energy emitted during the life of a building.
Typically through day to day living — oil/gas/electricity.

6 abed

. Embodied Carbon & Energy

A Embodied carbon refers to carbon dioxide emitted during the
manufacture, transport and construction of building materials.




Embodied carbon of cement

_____
KgCO2 -
A The carbon footprint of ordinary cementis ("
. very high — 930 Kg/tonne 0T
o0
—_— ;DU 200 1 (_
B Concrete made from ordinary cement 0
typically contributes to over 50% of the T

embodied carbon of a building. 1
300 w
200 V¥~

100 4~ g

0 - .
. Ordinary Cement




GGBS low carbon cement

A However, by mixing ordinary cement with
== a Mmaterial called GGBS (Ground
Granulated Blastfurnaced Slag) itis  ¥8¢02 ~

possible to reduce the carbon footprint of w1~
. cement by up to 70%. e
B GGBS has a carbon footprint of only 500 ";":
v 52Kg/tonne e e
B When GGBS is mixed with ordinary 200
cement you get GGBS Low Carbon o0 " A=y

Cement. This is used in the making of low  °~

Ordinary Cement | GGBS
carbon concrete.

GGBS Low Carbon Cement is produced in Ireland as well as imported. It
is supplied by a number of cement companies in Ireland.

5



Familiar Structures - conference Centre Dublin

ZT abed

i

Footer

A GGBS Low Carbon Concrete saved
11,000 tonnes of CO,

A Equivalent to:

A Taking approx. 4,400 cars off
the road for a year

A Providing electricity to
approx. 2,200 homes for a
year.



Greystones Marina

A GGBS Low Carbon Concrete saved
13,000 tonnes of CO,

A Equivalent to:

A Taking over 5,000 cars off the
road for a year

A Providing electricity to over
2,500 homes for a year.




Key Benefits

T abed

(of GGBS Low Carbon Concrete)




BS Concrete - Lasts longer

Design Life Extension

GT abed




More Resilient to Salts and Chemicals

Shanganagh Waste Water
== Treatment Plant — 50% GGBS

Blackpool sea front defence
and promenade



-
&,
O
C
O
e
i
)

GGBS Concrete

idge, Dublin City

ie Hackett Br

Ros




Implementation

—— A GGBS Low Carbon Concrete a bit longer to set

. A GGBS Concrete sets at a higher strength

8T abed

Rosie Hackett Bridge, Dublin City

12



Higher Quality Finish

Father Collins Park, Dublin |
70% GGBS "

6T abed




Reduces Impact on Natural Environment

= A For every tonne of

ordinary cement produced, | =g
. 1.6 tonnes of limestone /|  saaa
— - shale are removed from
the landscape

0z abed

‘A GGBS production involves
no quarrying of limestone
or clay

14

o NS



Greater Surface Reflectance

TZ abed

A Reduces outdoor lighting requirements by enhancing night
time visibility

A Lighter coloured surfaces are safer
A Saves money, energy and carbon emissions

A Approx. 30% less lighting needed to achieve same visibility for
concrete as it does for asphalt

15



Cost Competitive

. A GGBS Low Carbon Concrete is cost competitive

2z abed

16



Conclusion




Real Opportunity — future development

== [ For every 10,000 homes built using GGBS Low
Carbon Concrete there is a saving of:

vz abed

A 43,400 tonnes of CO, — equivalent to taking nearly 20,000
cars off the road for a year.

A 46,400 MwH of energy use — equivalent to supplying
approx. 8,500 homes with electricity for one year.
—

18



Summar

W= Low level of embodied  Significant reduction in embodied CO,. Increase in
CO, sustainability. Reduced Carbon footprint.
. Low level energy Significant reduction is energy requirement for production.
footprint
Stronger Enhances strength. Can reduce volume of concrete
required.
5
ﬁ Durable Enhanced durability resulting in concrete lasting longer.
(6]

More resistant to attack by salts, sulphates, farm effluent
and chemicals.

Aesthetics Superior and brighter finish
Security Its brighter finish reflects street lighting more effectively
Safety More fire resistant

Water Uses less water

19



Thank You




codemait

Dublin’s Energy Agency

Climate Change Strategy
for Dublin City

Environment SPC
23" September 2015

Dr. Gerry Wardell - Codema




4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

Structure of Presentation

Background to last Climate Change
Strategy

Developments since 2008
Energy Policy & Planning
Conclusions & Recommendations

gz abed

codemai:

Dublin’s Energy Agency



NH" B
Al

Who we are

10 staff
members
Engineering

Environmental
science

Sustainable
development

Communication
Project management

6¢ abed

e
A
et
[
B,

h

[ 1N
) { Comhairle Cathrach Combhairle Contae /’Q : . : A
W ‘ Bhaile Atha Cliath i) Couty i Comhairle Contae nuEE
W | DublinCity Council 8 Atha Cliath Theas mmnm

—— South Dublin County Council 11

Codema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency




NH"h
AL}

1. Background

Initiative of Dublin City

CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY

Council (then) E & E SPC § ===

Developed in association
with Codema

2009 — First Year Review

o€ abed

2008 - 201201

codemaisi A
“TIN
I I ;

codema

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



Dublin CO: Emissions (2006)

Transport

Residential

1€ abed

Commercial

codemai:

Dublin’s Energy Agency




4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

Strategy has 5 Chapters

Energy

Planning

Transport

Waste Management

Biodiversity

codemai:

Dublin’s Energy Agency



4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

2. Developments since 2008

Research:
Energy Monitoring Report (2014)
Flood Resilient City Report (2012)

Scientific confirmation of climate change

Dublin adaptation measures in response
to climate change

Climate Action & Low Carbon Bill
codema i

Dublin’s Energy Agency

¢¢ abed



Al I
Hn
Al

Research

Energy Monitoring Report 2014 Flood Resilient City project 2012

L

codemaf

Appendix V3-B:
Code of Practice 2
Flood Resilience and Adaptation Measures

€ abed

EU Interreg IVB FloodResilienCity Project
Final Report — Dublin
Volume Three: Pluvial Flood Risk Management

)
JACOBS W .

gy 1N
HEML
HOEM
EEENR
EETE
| I ]|
EEEN

Coclema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency




4
vV

NH" B
Al

Nobel Laureates’ Declaration

Gg abed

36 Nobel laureates signed the Mainau Declaration on 3" July, 2015
on Climate Change, an emphatic appeal for climate protection. m

HEL

HOEM
EEEE
EETE
HTHE
EEEN

Codema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency




NH"h
AL}

Impacts of Climate Change

Dublin Annual Mean Sea Level
2000 - 2013

100 _
(Provisional)
20 Q O
60 ¢ )
= Q ./
840
o TAY
EZO o/
Pl
£,0Q
=20 \7/
240 el
o O -
O 1 AN N S<TWINHDONODOODO A ANMS N
O O OO0 O 00000 ™ vf o4 o o
eoNeoNeoNoNeoNoNoNoNolNolNolNololNolNolNo
AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN ANANAN
A
[ 1N
HEA
| I 1S
EEEN

Coclema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



NH" B
Al 1

Storminess since 1970

Frequency of very high tides 1970-2014

(Number of tides>2m per week) .

1N
HEL
HOEM
EEEE

Coclema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



1

= Historical
" Flooding on
Clontarf Road

codemai:

Dublin’s Energy Agency




NH"h
AL}
Al

Flood Defences (Jan 2014)

Similar high tide to
2002

But:

 Less waves, wind, rain

6¢ abed

 DCC better prepared
« [Forecasting
« Defences

[N

[ 1N

HEL
HOEM
EEEN
EETE
ETEHE
EEER

Coclema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency




NH"h
AL}

Adaptation Measures

Flood defence
works

of abed

Georges Quay

September 2015

h

1N
HEL
HOEM
EEEE
EETE
ETEN
EEEN

Coclema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS




4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

3. Climate Policy & Planning

Climate Action and Low Carbon
Development Bill 2015

An Bille um Ghniomha Aeriide agns um Fharbairt Isealcharbéin, 2015
Climate Action and Low Carbon Development Bill 2015

Presented by the Minister
Environment, Community and
Local Government

T abed
B
g

15% january 2015

[N
[ 1N
[No. 2 of 2015] EEL
HOEM
EEER
EECE
| I ]|
EEEN

Codema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



ERRV
Nl R4 . .
mr Climate Action & Low Carbon
Development Bill 2015
Ch 4: Mitigation Plan Ch 5: Adaptation Frameyvrk
L

[ 1N
HEL
HOEM

odema:::
Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS




4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

4. Conclusion &
Recommendation
Recommendation

Develop a new

ey abed

Climate Mitigation and Adaptation Strategy for
Dublin City, 2016-2020°

EEEm
THC
d amnm
codema:::
Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

Suggested topics for new

strategy
Two sections (in line with National Bill):

vt abed

Mitigation Plan

Reduce our carbon emissions in order to avoid the
unmanageable

Adaptation Framework
Prepare for the impacts of climate change that are unavoidable

h
1N
HEL
I IL
II I

codemaii

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



NH" B
Al

1. Mitigation Plan

Based on Current Climate Change
Strategy

Gy abed

Review 5 sectoral chapters

Set new targets for 2020

EEEm
THC
d amnm
codema:::
Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

2. Adaptation Framework

Develop a new climate adaptation

framework

Specific to Dublin City Council
In accordance with National Framework

ot abed

Estimate cost of flood defences to 2025

Share knowledge with other cities
‘Mayors Adapt’ Initiative

EEEE
T

d ana
codema:::
Dublin’s Energy Agency



4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

Suggested Issues for SPC

Review Flood Resilience Codes of
Practice

Spatial Planning and Building Regulations
Flood resilience and Adaptation Measures

Evaluate Emergency preparedness

Storms, floods, snow & ice, heatwaves, water
shortages

Include Social Factors £
Immigration of Climate Refugees

, ¥ abed

codema

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



4
vV

NH"h
AL}

Suggested process for new
strategy

Establish a SPC sub-group to review:

Updates from relevant Departments/Sections for: Energy,
Planning, Transport, Waste Management & Biodiversity

Briefings from relevant Departments/Sections for: Surface
Water, Flood Defence, Emergency Response

Appoint body to prepare new draft strategy for
review by SPC

New draft strategy to go to Public Consultation and
approval by full Council

Codema to offer technical support through processs,

gy abed

Codema it

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



N R
o R4
| 14
4
And what about
the butterflies?

[N

[ 1N

HEL
HOEM
EEEN
EETE
ETEHE
EEER

Coclema =i

Dublin’s Energy Agency
RS



4
vV

NH" B
Al 1

Thank you for your attention

0g abed

Contact:
gerry.wardell@codema.ie
Tel: 01-707 9818

www.codema.ie

codemai:

Dublin’s Energy Agency



mailto:gerry.Wardell@codema.ie
http://www.codema.ie/

" ¢
* Dubbin Gty Council

Environment and Transportation Department,
Block 2, Floor 6,

Civic Offices,

Dublin 8.

16™ September 2015.
To Each Member of the

Environment Strategic Policy Committee

PROPOSED CHANGES IN THE BULKY HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION
SERVICE

INTRODUCTION

It is recognised that households sometimes generate an amount of household waste that is
bulky or too large in nature to be accepted by the regular waste collection service. The
volume of such waste generally does not warrant the hire of a skip from a waste contractor.
Unfortunately, such waste is sometimes collected by unscrupulous operators and
subsequently dumped illegally which is only to the detriment of all concerned.

Householders can currently dispose of bulky household waste by bringing the material to
one of the City Council's 2 Civic Amenity sites which are located in North Strand and
Ringsend. In addition, Dublin City Council has traditionally provided a bulky household waste
collection service to all householders across the City. Collection schedules typically operated
over a three to five year revolving period. If a street was due for a collection the
householder was notified by a leaflet drop 48 hours before the scheduled collection was
due to take place. The leaflet stated the date of the collection and also provided details of
what type of bulky waste was acceptable.

PROPOSED BULKY HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION

The cost of providing the bulky household waste collection service, to all householders
across the City amounts to approximately € 0.5m per annum. The service that Dublin City
Council has provided free of charge is a major draw on resources and is no longer
sustainable. Only two other local authorities (Galway City Council and Waterford City and
County) provide a door to door collection service but in both cases a charge is applied for
each item collected by the respective Council.

It is proposed to introduce a new online Bulky Waste Collection Service operated by Dublin
City Council. Bookings for a Bulky waste collection will be made via www.dublincity.ie and
the cost will be € 40 per house payable in advance. This charge will be limited to 5 bulky
items per household. Once payment is made, the local Cleansing Inspector for the Area will

Page 51



be in contact with the householder and will arrange for a suitable collection time within 3
working days.

The Bulky Household Waste Collection provided by the Waste Management Division will
cater for different types of waste as follows:

Material types accepted:-

Household furniture, carpets, bedding, mattresses, kitchen units, worktops, sinks, ironing
boards, doors, bathroom & toilet suites, bicycles, ladders, garden furniture including
barbeques, oil tanks, radiators, boilers, children’s swings & slides, buggies, prams and other
larger toy items. All these items can also be brought to the two Civic Amenity sites in the
City.

ltems not accepted:-
Black, green or brown material suitable for domestic bins, DIY material & builders rubble,
gas cylinders, priority waste such as batteries, paints, solvents and asbestos.

It should be noted that Dublin City Council already provides a bulky Household waste
removal service to its tenants free of charge through its Housing Maintenance Section and it
is intended that this service will continue.

We anticipate that the online Bulky Waste Collection Service will commence in the Spring of
2016 and the benefit of the new service is that the Bulky Waste Collection will be available
to each householder on demand all year round. This is a significant enhancement for the
householder. The fee will assist the Council in partially offsetting the costs associated with
providing this service.

Brian Hanney

Senior Executive Officer

Waste Management Division

Environment and Transportation Department

Page 52



" |
i
* Dubbin Gity Councit

Environment and Transportation Department,
Block 2, Floor 6,

Civic Offices,

Dublin 8.

16™ September 2015.
To Each Member of the

Environment Strategic Policy Committee

Update on Litter Management Plan

Waste Management completed a non statutory public consultation phase of
the Litter Management Plan before the Summer and we received 128
submissions from all sectors of the community. We have concluded a review of
the old plan and are currently finalising the draft new LMP for consideration by
the Environmental SPC in November. Once the draft plan has been approved
by the SPC it will be presented to the City Council for approval before the draft
Litter Management Plan goes on public consultation.

The statutory public consultation process will mirror the earlier non statutory
process. Advertisements’ will be placed in newspapers, local radio, Dublin City
Council website, social media etc inviting members of the public, business
community, elected representatives etc to comment or contribute to the final
plan. All submissions received at that stage will be examined and incorporated
into the Litter Management Plan where appropriate. The final Litter
Management Plan will come back to the SPC and City Council for approval and
we anticipate that the Litter Management Plan for 2016-2018 will be in place
early in 2016.

Brian Hanney

Senior Executive Officer

Waste Management Division

Environment and Transportation Department

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



o Comhairle Cathrach
* Bhaile Atha Cliath
‘ Dublin City Council

Environment and Transportation Department,
Block 2, Floor 6,

Civic Offices,

Dublin 8.

16" September 2015.

To Each Member of the
Environment Strategic Policy Committee

Household Waste Regulations

At the June meeting of the Environment Strategic Policy Committee a verbal report was delivered in
relation to new Regulations (S.1 197 of 2015 - Waste Management Collection Permit Amendment
Regulations 2015) governing the Collection of Household Waste. It was agreed that a briefing
document would issue to members of the committee outlining proposed changes to current
collections arrangements.

A report issued to Members of the Committee on 5™ August advising that the Regulations provided
for the following changes to existing Household Waste Collection arrangements.

¢ Household Customers of a waste operator must be provided with a recyciable collection
every two weeks.

e The collector must weigh all receptacles collected separately and they must be in reusable
containers.

e The collectors must report the weights in writing to householder at a minimum once per
month.

e Collectors must use an approved weighing system and only use vehicles that have been
fitted with this weighing system

e Collectors must prepare a customer charter and publish on website.

e There is a minimum list of recyclables that a waste operator must collect.

e Phasing out bags — Household waste collections using bags will not be permissible beyond 1%
July 2016 apart from very specific areas designated by Local Authorities.

The City Council has commenced a data gathering exercise to determine if those areas of the City
currently in receipt of a bag collection service are suitable for wheeled bin collections. At this stage
in excess of 800 streets have been identified as having a bag collection services and / or a mix of
bags and wheeled bins. In order to ascertain the suitability of areas it is necessary to carry out a
physical inspection of each street and this process is ongoing.

Page 55



It is likely to be mid October before this exercise is complete and | will report further at the
November meeting of the Committee.

A bagged waste service is provided at out Civic Amenity sites. A new tender is currently being
drafted for both sites and will include provisions to comply with the new regulations.

Discussions are ongoing with waste operators in relation to the phasing out of bag collections and
there will be further input from the DECLG in relation to the criteria for determining the designation
of bag collection areas.

Declan Wallace
Executive Manger

Page 56



Discussion Paper - Community Gain Fund Contribution

The calculation of the capital contribution to the community gain fund for the Poolbeg Incinerator is
quite straightforward.

Proposal and Planning Permission

Dublin City Council proposed that the community gain fund would receive a capital contribution of
3% of the capital cost of the facility. This proposal was made in four places in the application to An
Bord Pleandla. The phrase used in each reference was “3% of the capital cost of the facility”.

The Inspector’s report from the oral hearing also made four references. Again in each case it was a
reference to a capital contribution of 3% of the capital cost of the facility.

Mr Twomey on behalf of Dublin City Council clarified that “It was approximately 3% of the capital
cost, whatever the capital cost of the project would be”.

Finally, Condition 3 of An Bord Pleanala’s decision in case EF2022 states:

“This fund shall include a once-off capital contribution equivalent to 3% of the
capital cost of the facility “

Calculation in 2007

In 2007 an estimate of € 8 million for the capital contribution was made based on 3% of the € 266
million capital cost of the facility at that time which was the estimated construction cost of € 266
million.

In 2007 there was no cost of capital because the contract required the private partner to provide
balance sheet financing.

In 2010 the contract lapsed and Covanta negotiated a restated contract with Dublin City Council on
behalf of the four Dublin Local Authorities. For unknown reasons, DCC released Covanta from the
obligation to provide equity finance and allowed Covanta to raise project finance in the market.

The capital cost of raising the finance has turned out to be € 154 million. This extraordinarily high
cost should be the subject of a separate investigation. (See note.)

Calculation in 2014

By 2014 the construction cost had risen to € 346 million and together with the finance cost of € 154
million this brought the capital cost for this facility to € 500 million.

The 3% capital contribution to the community gain fund is therefore € 15 million.
Additional Consideration

Since this project cost a further € 100 million spent by DCC on land acquisition, planning and other
matters, consideration should be given to the provision of a further contribution of € 3 million to the
community gain fund.

This would bring the proper capital contribution to the community gain fund to € 18 million.

Page 57



Errors and Omissions in the DCC Briefing Paper

The briefing paper submitted on 5™ August 2015 by Dublin City Council Environment and
Transportation Department contains several errors.

Regarding the clarification sought by the Inspector from Mr Twomey on the basis for the 3%: the
quotation from the Inspector’s report is cut short by omitting the phrase:

“... whatever the capital cost of the project would be”.
A further distortion of this clarification is introduced on the last page of the paper where it states:

“It should be further noted that DCC as applicant clarified that the proposal
associated with the onceoff capital contribution was not fixed at €8m but
would be calculated by reference to 3% of the capital/construction cost.”

The clarification by Mr Twomey as recorded by the Inspector did not use the phrase
“capital/construction cost”. The clarification in the Inspector’s report was:

“It [the lump sum] was not €8 million, irrespective of the capital cost of the
project. It was approximately 3% of the capital cost, whatever the capital cost
of the project would be.”

This use of the words “capital/construction cost” is not used in the application, nor is it used by the
Inspector in his reports, nor is it used in the planning permission.

This is an attempt by the authors to substitute the capital cost of the facility with the construction
cost of the facility. The briefing paper also attempts to confuse the capital cost with a “project cost”.

Spurious Methodology

The paper attempts to introduce a methodology of calculating 3% of the capital cost by limiting the
capital cost to the construction element alone.

No methodology is mentioned in the planning application documents nor is a methodology referred
to in the Inspector’s report and, in particular, no methodology is mentioned in the grant of planning
permission.

No special methodology is required to calculate 3% - just multiply by 3 and divide by 100.
Capital Cost

The briefing paper does not address the actual capital cost of the facility as it stands today. The
capital cost consists of two elements:

e the construction cost estimated at € 346 million
e the cost of capital estimated at € 154 million

The overall capital cost is the sum of these two capital costs and is therefore € 500 million.

Page 58



Covanta in their SEC 10-Q filing state:

“The total investment in the Dublin Waste-to-Energy Facility is expected to be
approximately €500 million, funded by a combination of third party non-recourse
project financing (€375 million) and the contribution of project equity by Covanta
Energy (approximately €125 million net investment ...}”

Financing Costs and Capitalized Interest

Covanta also state in the 10-Q filing that interest expense paid on the Dublin project financing and
costs amortized to interest expense will be capitalized during the construction phase of the project.

In accordance with the United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) used by
Covanta the interest cost of loans for a project must be capitalised.

The Department of Finance guidance for Public Private Partnership projects also requires capitalised
loan interest to be included in the total capital cost.

Conclusion
The capital cost of this facility is € 500 million.

The capital contribution to the community gain fund should be € 15 million not the € 10.38 million
proposed by DCC.

Joe McCarthy
Member (An Taisce)
Environment Strategic Policy Committee

Dublin City Council

September 2" 2015

Page 59



Note

The clarification sought by the Inspector from Mr Twomey was prescient because the capital cost
has risen to almost twice the cost expected in 2007 — from € 266 million to € 500 million in 2014.

The principle reason for this enormous rise is the change to the contract conditions originally
required by DCC whereby the private partner would use its own equity on balance sheet to build the
incinerator. After the project contract lapsed in 2010 Covanta obtained agreement from the DLAs to
have the project financed from the market. The consequence is that substantial interest costs now
arise.

An eye watering interest rate of 13.5% is being paid to a Covanta company in Luxemburg which lent
€ 75 million*.

A rate of some 9.5% applies to the € 50 million Dublin Junior Term Loan lent by Macquarie Capital.

The Dublin Senior Term Loan of € 250 million is at 6%. This loan is from AIB, Bank of Ireland,
Barclays, the Ireland Strategic Investment Fund, Macquarie Bank and Ulster Bank.

It is not clear how such high interest rates can be justified for a public private partnership project
when state borrowing rates are currently around 4% or less.

The excess interest paid of some € 70 million over the term of the loans is a reduction in profit of the
same amount. This reduction in profit will seriously diminish the revenue share of the DLAs.

JMcC

* Irish Times - Colm Keena - Tuesday, June 23, 2015

Funding for the building of the waste to energy incinerator in Poolbeg, Dublin, is coming from a company in
Luxembourg with a structure similar to the ones that featured in last year’s Luxleaks controversy over
aggressive tax planning.

Filings in Luxembourg show that a company there, Dublin First WTE, was incorporated in September 2014 and
immediately entered into a stakeholder loan agreement with an Irish company, Dublin Waste to Energy
(Holdings), for €75 million.

The Luxembourg company is charging 13.5 per cent per annum interest on the loan, which is to be repaid in
2029. The arrangement means that the taxable profits booked in Ireland by Dublin Waste to Energy (Holdings)
will be reduced by the cost of servicing the debt to the Luxembourg company. One of the features of the
Luxleaks controversy was the creation of entities in Luxembourg that created profit-reducing costs in other
jurisdictions, while not producing comparable taxable profits in Luxembourg.

Dublin First WTE has no employees, according to its 2014 accounts, and it was established so as to invest in
and take interests in other companies, and grant loans to affiliated companies. It is in turn owned by a
company in the Cayman Islands.

Page 60



Community Gain Fund — Background Paper

This document collects all the references in the planning documents to the 3%
contribution to the community gain fund:

From the EIS — 2 references — A and B

From Mr Coll’s brief of evidence to the oral hearing - C

From Mr Coll’s presentation slides to the oral hearing - D

From the inspectors report — 2 references — E and F

From the inspectors summary of the oral hearing — 2 references — G and H
From Condition 3 imposed by An Bord Pleanéla - 1

AW DW=

In all nine cases the amount is stated to be 3% of the capital cost of the facility.

EIS — Appendix 13.2

WASTE TO ENERGY ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT
COMMUNITY GAIN PROPOSALS

Page 2

Proposed Scale of the Community Gain Fund

Dublin City Council is proposing that the fund should comprise a once-off
capital contribution of 3% of the capital cost of the facility

Page 6
Summary of Proposal
The following is a summary of the proposal regarding a Community Gain
Fund:
1. A Community Gain Fund woulid be established comprising:
(a) a once off capital contribution of 3% of the capital cost of the
facility, which is estimated at €8m

Mr Coll - Brief of Evidence

Dublin City Council
Dublin Waste to Energy Project — Community Gain
« A once off capital contribution equivalent to 3% of the capital
cost of the facility. This contribution is estimated at €8m

Mr Coll - Presentation Slides

Community Gain Fund Proposal
* A once off capital contribution equivalent to 3% of the capital cost
of the facility. This contribution is estimated at€8m

Joe McCarthy 24" June 2015 Page 1

Page 61



An Bord Pleanala — Inspectors Report

In the current case, I consider that in general the extent of the fund being
proposed by the Local Authority is reasonable, i.e. a capital contribution
equivalent to 3% of the capital cost of the facility and an annual revenue
contribution equivalent to 0.5% of the revenue generated by gate fees, subject
to an annual ceiling of €500,000.

PL29S.CH2061/ An Bord Pleandla Page 142 of 165
PL29S.EF2022

4 A Community Gain Fund shall be established to support facilities and services
which would be of benefit to the community in the general catchment area.
This fund shall include a once-off capital contribution equivalent to 3% of the
capital cost of the facility and an annual contribution per tonne of waste
accepted for thermal treatment at the plant.

PL29S.CH2061/ An Bord Pleanila Page 159 of 165
PL29S.EF2022

An Bord Pleanala — Inspectors Report — Oral Hearing

APPENDIX NO. 1
REPORT ON ORAL HEARING

Mr. Coll stated that the community gain fund would include a once off capital
contribution equivalent to 3% of the capital cost of the facility. This
contribution is estimated at €8 million

PL29S.CH2061/ An Bord Pleandla Page 2 of 7
PL29S.EF2022

Prior to their closing submission, in response to a question from the Inspector
as to whether the lump sum for the community fund would be based on the
actual capital cost and a percentage of this, or if it would be €8 million as
stated, Mr. Twomey, on behalf of Dublin City Council stated that it was
approximately 3% of the capital cost of the project as outlined in Mr. Coll’s
brief of evidence. It was not €8 million, irrespective of the capital cost of the
project. It was approximately 3% of the capital cost, whatever the capital cost
of the project would be. Mr. Twomey stated that there was no decision made
in regard to when the initial payment would be made.

PL29S.CH2061/ An Bord Pleandla Page 2 of 7
PL29S.EF2022
Joe McCarthy 24™ June 2015 Page 2

Page 62



An Bord Pleanala — Decision — Condition 3

An Bord Pleanala
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACTS 2000 TO 2006
Dublin City Council
DECISION

3. A community gain fund shall be established to support facilities and services which
would be of benefit to the community in the general catchment area. This fund shall
include a once-off capital contribution equivalent to 3% of the capital cost of the
facility and an annual contribution per tonne of waste accepted for thermal treatment
at the plant. The annual contribution shall be €1 per tonne in the first year following @
commissioning of the plant and thereafter shall be updated in accordance with the
consumer price index. Details of the management and operation of the community
gain fund, which shall be lodged in a special community fund account, shall be agreed
between Dublin City Council and the community liaison committee referred to in
condition number 2 above.
29S8.EF2022 An Bord Pleanila Page 3 of 7

Joe McCarthy 24™ June 2015 Page 3

Page 63



Capital Cost

Construction cost is stated to be € 346 million
Total investment cost is stated to be approx € 500 million.

Financing and interest costs arise from three tranches of borrowing:
The amounts and interest rates applicable to these loans are:

1. Dublin Convertible Preferred €75 million anticipated funding in 2015
a fixed rate of 13.50% per annum

2. Dublin Junior Term Loan €50 million anticipated funding in 2015 /2016
a fixed rate of 5.23% during the first six months of the loan, and thereafter at fixed
rates from 9.23% t0 9.73%

3. Dublin Senior Term Loan €250 million anticipated in 2016 / 2017
Euro Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR") plus an applicable margin, which will
range from 4.00% to 4.50%

Capital Cost — Covanta Treatment — SEC 10-Q

Financing Costs and Capitalized Interest

Financing costs related to the Dublin project financing totaled $3 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2015. Interest expense paid on the Dublin project financing
and costs amortized to interest expense will be capitalized during the construction
phase of the project.

Dublin Waste-to-Energy Facility

The total investment in the Dublin Waste-to-Energy Facility is expected to be
approximately €500 million, funded by a combination of third party non-recourse
project financing (€375 million) and the contribution of project equity by Covanta
Energy (approximately €125 million net investment through commencement of
operations, including previously invested amounts towards project development and
pre-construction works, which total approximately €30 million). We expect to fund
the majority of our additional project equity in 2015. Following the utilization of
Covanta’s initial equity investment for project costs (approximately €125 million), the
Dublin project company will utilize committed funding from the Dublin Convertible
Preferred (€75 million, anticipated funding in 2015), the Dublin Junior Term Loan
(€50 million, anticipated funding in 2015 / 2016), and finally the Dublin Senior Term
Loan (€250 million, anticipated in 2016 / 2017).

We plan to fund the majority of our equity investment with existing offshore cash
balances, with any additional or interim project funding requirements to be funded

with ongoing cash flow and/or capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility.

In preparing our condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with
United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”),

Joe McCarthy 24" June 2015 Page 4

Page 64



Capital Cost — Dept of Finance Circular for PPPs

The accounting treatment guidance for capital cost is to include the capitalised
interest. See note from Dept of Finance below.

TO: All Departments

F 7/1/00

2 April 2007

Circular 4/2007: Accounting for Public Private Partnership (PPP) Projects in the
2007 and subsequent years’ Appropriation Accounts

A Dhuine Uasail

7. The total capital cost (i.e. excluding Operation and Maintenance costs) of the
project, to be shown in Column 4 in the table, should represent all the costs
(including VAT) associated with the construction of the physical asset to the point
of becoming available for use and included in the winning bidder’s financial
model:

i. Actual capital construction costs (including “fit out” services and equipment
costs)

ii. Administration arrangement overheads for consortium that would be factored
into commercial pricing of the built asset (e.g. bank fees, SPC operating costs
insurance, etc.)

iii. Short term funding costs (excluding finance charges) to point of delivery of
the built asset (i.e. arrangement and commitment fees, capitalised interest, etc.)

FAS 34 - Capitalization of Interest Cost

This Statement establishes standards for capitalizing interest cost as part of the
historical cost of acquiring certain assets. To qualify for interest capitalization, assets
must require a period of time to get them ready for their intended use. Examples are
assets that an enterprise constructs for its own use (such as facilities) and assets
intended for sale or lease that are constructed as discrete projects (such as ships or real
estate projects). Interest capitalization is required for those assets if its effect,
compared with the effect of expensing interest, is material. If the net effect is not
material, interest capitalization is not required. However, interest cannot be
capitalized for inventories that are routinely manufactured or otherwise produced in
large quantities on a repetitive basis.

The interest cost eligible for capitalization shall be the interest cost recognized on
borrowings and other obligations. The amount capitalized is to be an allocation of the
interest cost incurred during the period required to complete the asset. The interest
rate for capitalization purposes is to be based on the rates on the enterprise's
outstanding borrowings. If the enterprise associates a specific new borrowing with the
asset, it may apply the rate on that borrowing to the appropriate portion of the
expenditures for the asset. A weighted average of the rates on other borrowings is to
be applied to expenditures not covered by specific new borrowings. Judgment is
required in identifying the borrowings on which the average rate is based.

Joe McCarthy 24™ June 2015 Page 5

Page 65



Capital Cost— IFRS and IAS 20 Treatment

Full EU IFRS requirements
» Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset must be capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs requires that borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a 'qualifying asset' (one that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are included
in the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense.

Joe McCarthy 24" June 2015 Page 6

Page 66



Capita Report — Oversight and Scrutiny
Page 24

From a governance standpoint, it would be reasonable to expect the EESPC, as the
Council's designated sub-committee most closely linked to the Engineering function,
to ask for and receive sufficiently detailed and regular information to allow Councillors
to have effective scrutiny and oversight of the WTE project. Based on the work we
have undertaken, this has not occurred in the period covered by the review.

RECOMMENDATION 6: The WTE project should be included as a standing
agenda item for meetings of the EESPC, at least until the proposed
development is completed and operational. The Assistant City Manager should
provide Committee members with a concise but sufficiently detailed update on
the progress of the project for consideration at EESPC meetings.

Reference in the Contract

See page 30:

A lump sum capital contribution amount equivalent to three percent (3%) of the
capital cost of the Facility ...

Reference in the Managers Briefing of 19" Sept 2014

See 2 references:

On page 6

Full cost of constructing the DW1E facility (estimated at circa €500m)
Page 13

Foreign direct investment into Ireland as a result of its €500m investment cost.

Joe McCarthy 24™ June 2015 Page 7

Page 67



Page 68



Environment and Transportation Department,
Block 2, Floor 6,

Civic Offices,

Dublin 8.

25" November 2015.

To Each Member of the
Environment Strategic Policy Committee

Dublin Waste to Energy (DWtE) Project

1 Construction Status

Construction remains on schedule for completion in Q3 2017.

1.1 Progress to Date

Progress in the key areas are summarised below:

Construction

o There are currently approximately 289 contractors on site at any point in time.

° Construction is currently programmed on a 24/7 basis.

° PM Group Limited, the civil designer and construction manager have reported that
design and procurement activities for the civil related aspect of the facility are now 95%
complete.

o The main focus of PM Group and their subcontractors are:
= the installation of structural steel for the enclosure over the waste bunker
area,
= works associated with the facility cooling water system,
= works associated with the tipping hall floor,
= finalisation of the civil works associated with the electrical and transformer
rooms.

° Hitachi Zosen Inova (HZl), the process systems designer have reported that they are
85% complete in the efforts focused on completing Process & Instrumentation
Diagram'’s, equipment specifications and procurement of equipment.

o The main focus of HZI and their subcontractors activities are:
= erection of structural steel for both lines of the boiler and the turbine hall,
= installation of the process equipment,
= inspection and review of process equipment manufacturing.

1|Page

Page 69



e P —

Site Aerial View Looking East October 2015 (Copyright PML)

Site Aerial View Looking Northwest October 2015 (Copyright PML)

2|Page

Page 70



Boiler Hall (Copyright PML) Turbine Hall (Copyright PML).

2 Environmental Impact

Environmental monitoring and mitigation measures continued to be implemented during the
Construction phase of the DWHE facility and the construction phase environmental report for quarter
3 (July — September) 2015 is presented as Appendix 1 to this report.

Additionally the wildfowl monitoring report for winter 2014/2015 is presented as Appendix 2 to this
report.

All reports are also available for download at the Dublin Waste to Energy Website.

3 Community Liaison

3.1 DWIHIE Local Office

The local office for the Dublin Waste to Energy Facility relocated to the Ringsend Library, Fitzwilliam
Street, Dublin 4, on a trial basis from the 17 November. The office will operate on Tuesday and
Thursday mornings between 10:00 and 12:00.

3.2 Community Gain Liaison Committee

The second meeting of the Community Gain Liaison Committee (CGLC) took place on the 28™ of
October 2015.

3|Page

Page 71



q Compliance with statutory consents

There are no non-compliance issues to report.

Declan Wallace

Executive Manager

4|Page

Page 72



Powertng Today Profecting Tomorrow

GROUP

Dublin Waste to Energy

Issue date: 19 November 2015

Page 73



PW

GROUP

Powering Tod:

nt ay Protociing Tomorrow

Construction Phase Environmental Monitoring Report
- Quarter 3 (July - September) 2015

Signoff

Originator

Checked

Approver

Date

Name

Ray Derrig

Ciaran Reay

Eoin Curham

19" November 2015

Page 74



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

S s T
19 November 2015
Contents
1 Introduction 4
2 Local Environment 5
3 Noise 6
3.1 Noise Guidance & Standards 6
3.2 Measurement Parameters 6
3.3 Construction Noise Limits at Sensitive Locations 6
34 Noise Monitoring Results 7
3.5 Conclusion 8
4 Dust Deposition
41 Monitoring Method 9
4.2 Monitoring Results 9
4.3 Conclusion 12
5 Surface Water 13
5.1 Monitoring Method 13
5.2 Monitoring Results 13
5.3 Conclusion 15
Appendix A 16
Noise Data 16
IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 3 of 33

Page 75

Formal Issue



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
P Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
GrOUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015
1 Introduction

An environmental monitoring programme has been implemented during the construction stage of
the Dublin Waste to Energy (DWTE) Project. In conjunction with the monitoring, a number of
controls and procedures have been implemented during construction activities to avoid, or
minimise, potential adverse impacts to the environment and local community.

The monitoring programme assists in demonstrating compliance with the conditions and
requirements laid out in An Bord Pleanala Order-29S.EF2022, Condition 13d; “A scheme for
monitoring noise, dust deposition and suspended solids in surface water run-offs and adjacent
waters shall be prepared for the construction phase of the development. Details of the scheme
shall be made available for inspection at the offices of Dublin City Council and at a local office in
the Ringsend/Poolbeg area prior to the commencement of construction works. Monitoring shall be
carried out during the construction phase and reports on the monitoring shall be made available for
inspection at the offices in question on a 3 monthly basis. The reports shall compare monitored
results with standards set out in the environmental impact statement or standards given in
recognised national or international guidelines as relevant.”

Construction of the DWTE facility recommenced in October 2014 and an environmental monitoring
programme in accordance with the ‘Dublin Waste to Energy - Construction Phase Monitoring
Scheme' September 2009 has been implemented. The 3rd Quarterly Report 2015 on the
Construction Phase Monitoring Scheme relates to environmental monitoring undertaken for the
period of July to September 2015. The PM Group construction management team were present on
site throughout the July to September 2015 monitoring period. The PM Group construction
management team ensured construction works were undertaken to comply with environmental
procedures for the site. Environmental monitoring with regards to noise, dust deposition and
suspended solids in surface water commenced with construction works.

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04 .doc Page 4 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 76



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A

GROUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046
19 November 2015

2 Local Environment

The main population centres of Ringsend, Irishtown and Sandymount are located approximately
1km from the boundary of the site.

The closest sensitive receptors to the site are the residential properties at Pigeon House Road
which are located approximately 865m west of the site boundary. A map of sensitive locations and
environmental monitoring points (noise, dust and surface water) are included in Figure 2.1.

The identified sensitive noise locations are N1 — N6 as follows:
- N1 - Rehab Institute

- N2 - Seafort Avenue

- N3 - Beach Avenue

- N4 - Leukos Road

- N5 - Pigeon House Road

- N6 — Walkway (Irishtown Nature Reserve)

R =1

Figure 2.1: Environmental Monitoring Locations

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 5 of 33
Formal Issue

Page 77



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015

3.1

3.2

33

Noise

Monitoring of noise levels at sensitive locations is required during construction to assess
compliance with the requirements of the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and An Bord
Pleanala Order-29S.EF2022, Condition 13d. Refer to Figure 2.1 in Section 2 for the monitoring
locations.

Noise Guidance & Standards
The noise monitoring was conducted in accordance with the following guidance:

- International Standard ISO 1996-1:2003 - Acoustics — Description, Measurement and
assessment of Environmental Noise

- BS 4142:2014 - Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound

- BS 5228-1:2009 + A1:2014 — Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction
and open sites.

Measurement Parameters

Noise is measured in terms of decibels (dB). The various measurement parameters and noise
terminology are defined below.

- Decibel (dB)

Decibel (dB) is the standard unit for expressing the noise level (sound pressure level). It is
calculated as a logarithm of the intensity of sound. It is derived from the logarithm of the ratio
between the value of a quantity and a reference quantity. For sound pressure leve! the reference
quantity is 20uPa which is the threshold of normal hearing and equates to 0dB. At the upper end of
the scale 140dB is the threshold of pain.

- A-weighted Decibel (dBA)

Decibels measured on a sound level meter incorporating a frequency weighting (A weighting)
which differentiates between sound of different frequency (pitch) in a similar way to the human ear.
This takes account of the fact that the human ear has different sensitivities to sound at different
frequencies.

- LAeq

The equivalent continuous sound level — the sound pressure level of a steady sound having the
same energy as a fluctuating sound over a specified measuring period. It can be considered similar
to an average level. The Lagq value is the A-weighted Leq.

- Lagg and Laqp Values

The Lagy and Laqg Values represent the A-weighted sound pressure levels exceeded for a
percentage of the instrument measuring time. The Lagg represents the sound pressure level
exceeded for 90% of the monitoring period and is a good indicator of the background noise level
excluding peak noise events. Laq indicates the sound pressure level exceeded for 10% of the
monitoring period and is a good parameter for expressing event noise such as passing traffic.

- LAMax (dBA)

The maximum instantaneous value recorded over the monitoring period including A-weighting

Construction Noise Limits at Sensitive Locations

Ambient noise levels at the nearest sensitive locations to the site have being established based on
review of the Environmental Impact Statement, Dublin City Noise Map mode! and preconstruction
noise monitoring. These ambient measurements at the noise sensitive locations are compared
against the values identified in “British Standard 5228-1:2009+A1:2014: Code of practice for noise
and vibration control on construction and open sites — Part 1:Noise " and maximum permissible

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 6 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 78



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015

3.4

341

noise levels at facade dwellings are recommended. The maximum noise levels are presented in
Table 3.1 below.

Table 3.1: Maximum Permissible Noise Levels at the Facade of Dwellings during Construction

Sensitive Locations

Rehab Seafort Beach Leukos Pigeon Walkway

R House Irishtown
Institute Avenue Avenue Road Road Nature Park

Daytime
Monday - Friday
0700hrs to 1900hrs
Rating level, Laeq (1hr)dB
Evenings and Weekends

1900hrs to 1100hrs 55 55 55 55 55 55
Rating level, Laeq (1hr)dB
Night time

2300hrs to 0700hrs 50 50 50 50 50 50
Rating level, Laeq (1hr)dB

65 65 65 65 65 65

Noise Monitoring Results

Monitoring was undertaken at site boundary and sensitive locations during construction works. The
survey was carried out over the months July to September 2015. The surveys involved a 30 minute
sample period taken at each of the noise monitoring locations.

Noise Calculations from Boundary Sampling Locations

To establish the contribution of the July - September 2015 DWTE site activities, to the noise levels
at the sensitive receptors, the ‘British Standard 5228-1:2009+A1:2014: Code of practice for noise
and vibration control on construction and open sites — Part 1: Noise” was used to calculate the
noise levels at the sensitive receptors based on noise levels monitored at the western and southern
site boundary locations only.

The western and southern boundaries are used to represent the closest boundaries to the sensitive
receptors as the most accurate calculation of noise levels. On this basis, when both are available,
the southern boundary is used to calculate the noise level contribution levels for the Rehab
Institute, Seafort Avenue, Beach Avenue and Irishtown Nature Park. The Western Boundary is
used to calculate the noise contribution levels at the Pigeon House Road and Leukos Road.

Using the BS 5228 Standard calculation, the highest contribution of noise calculated for the months
of July to September 2015 at each of the sensitive locations is presented in Table 3.2.

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04 doc Page 7 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 79



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015

3.5

Table 3.2: The Contribution of the DWTE Site Activities to Noise Levels at Sensitive Receptors

Sensitive Locations

Pigeon | Irishtown
House Nature
Road Park

NS N6

Rehab Seafort | Beach | Leukos
Month Time Institute | Avenue | Avenue | Road

N1 N2 N3 N4

July 2015 Daytime 35 34 33 34 34 48
Results level, -
Laeq(30 min)dg | Evening 22 21 20 23 23 35

August 2015 Daytime 37 36 35 43 43 50
Results level, Evening 34 33 32 36 36 47
LAeq(30 min)dB Nightime 27 27 25 28 29 40
September 2015 | Daytime 31 30 2 36 33 44
Results level, Evening 23 22 21 25 25 38
Laeq(30 min)dB | Nightime 24 23 22 28 29 37

Conclusion

The noise levels were calculated from measurements taken at the site boundary locations and their
contribution to the closest residential sensitive receptor established. During the July to September
period the greatest daytime noise level contribution at a residential sensitive receptor was 43dB.
The greatest daytime noise level at Irishtown Nature Park was calculated as 50dB. The greatest
evening time noise level contribution at a residential sensitive receptor was 36dB. The greatest
evening time noise level at Irishtown Nature Park was calculated as 47dB. The greatest nightime
time noise level contribution at a residential sensitive receptor was 29dB. The greatest daytime
noise level at Irishtown Nature Park was calculated as 40dB.

These noise contribution levels are significantly lower than the construction noise limits as detailed
in Table 3.1. Most construction works occur during the daytime hours with limited construction
occurring thereafter. The noise monitoring contribution at sensitive location is within permissible
levels.

Ambient noise level at sensitive locations is found to be similar or higher than those monitored at
site boundary locations. The sensitive locations are situated up to 1km away from site boundaries
and noise contribution from site is low as shown in Table 3.2. The noise at sensitive receptors is
affected by localised noise sources, mainly road traffic. The boundary monitoring readings are used
to calculate the noise contribution at the closest sensitive receptors. Table 3.2 shows that these
were below the maximum permissible noise levels at the facade of dwellings during construction.

On this basis, it is concluded that the site activities undertaken during the July — September 2015
construction period are not causing exceedances of the construction noise limit values at sensitive
receptors.

Detailed noise monitoring data is included in Appendix A.

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04 doc Page 8 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 80



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
GROUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046
19 November 2015

4 Dust Deposition

A scheme for monitoring dust deposition and direction has been developed for the construction
phase of the development.
4.1 Monitoring Method

Monitoring was overseen by the Project Environmental Consuitant and undertaken by independent
laboratory in accordance with the ‘Dublin Waste to Energy - Construction Phase Monitoring
Scheme’, September 2009. Dust monitoring locations D1 — D4 are shown in Figure 2.1.

There are no legislative regulations regarding fugitive dust during construction either in Ireland or
the UK. The “Technical instructions on Air Quality Control — TA Luft" 2002 emission value for
dustfall of 350 mg/mzlday is therefore used as the maximum guideline level during construction.

Continuous particulate matter monitors were installed at two sensitive locations close to the
construction project. The parameter being sampled was particulate matter (PMqo, PM; 5 and Total
Particulate Matter. These locations AD1 and AD2 are shown in Figure 2.1.

4.2 Monitoring Results

4.2.1 Weather Conditions

The average weather conditions during the July to September 2015 monitoring period are given
below (http://www.wunderground.com);

- July 2015

Average Precipitation: 1.8mm/ Day
- Average Wind Speed: 18.2 km/H
Average Temperature: 13.6°C

L}

- Total Precipitation 55.0mm
- August 2015
- Average Precipitation: 2.1mm/ Day
- Average Wind Speed: 16.0 km/H
- Average Temperature: 13.8°C
- Total Precipitation 64.0mm
- September 2015
- Average Precipitation: 0.8mm/ Day
- Average Wind Speed: 16 Km/H
- Average Temperature: 11.6°C
- Total Precipitation 22.9mm

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 9 of 33

Formal lssue
Page 81



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-00486, Issue A

PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046
19 November 2015

4.2.2 Dust Deposition — Bergerhoff Gauges

The dust deposition results from the Bergerhoff gauges are given in Tables 4.1 — 4.3. Refer to
Figure 2.1 in Section 2 for the monitoring locations.

Table 4.1: Dust Deposition Results — July 2015

Sample Date Date Dust Dust Rate of TA Luft
Locations Collected Gauge | Collected Dust Limit
Deployed mg/gauge || Deposition | mg/m?/day
Diameter
mg/m?/day | (Annual
(cm) Average)

1 (West) 23.06.2015 21.07.20156 8.5 18.5 116 350
2 (North) 23.06.2015 21.07.2015 8.5 14.8 93 350
3 (East) 23.06.2015 21.07.20156 8.5 41.3 260 350
4 (South) 23.06.2015 21.07.2015 8.5 15.0 94 350

Table 4.2: Dust Deposition Results — August 2015

Sample Date Date Dust Dust Rate of TA Luft
Locations Deoloved Collected Gauge | Collected Dust Limit
ploy 4 mg/gauge Deposition | mg/m?*/day
Diameter A i
mg/m?/day (fXiITE
(cm) Average)

1 (West) 21.07.2015 18.08.2015 8.5 17.8 112 350
2 (North) 21.07.2015 18.08.2015 8.5 31.8 200 350
3 (East) 21.07.2015 18.08.2015 8.5 376 237 350
4 (South) 21.07.2015 18.08.2015 8.5 240 161 350

Table 4.3: Dust Deposition Results — September 2015

Sample Date Date Collected Dust Dust Rate of
Locations Deploved Gauge Collected Dust
ploy . mg/gauge |Deposition l mg/m?/day
Diameter A i
mg/m?/day (f- YIS
(cm) Average)
1 (West) 18.08.2015 22.09.2015 8.5 1561.3 762 350
2 (North) 18.08.2015 22.09.2015 8.5 60.9 307 350
3 (East) 18.08.2015 22.09.2015 8.5 56.1 283 350
4 (South) 18.08.2015 22.09.2015 8.5 48.1 242 350
IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 10 of 33
Formal Issue

Page 82




P

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015

Table 4.4: Dust Deposition Results — Annual Average October 2014 — September 2015

Sample Commencement Completion Rate of Dust TA Luft Limit
Locations Date Date Deposition mg/m?/day
mga/m?*/day (Annual Average)
(Annual Average)
1 (West) 28.10.2014 22.09.2015 319 350
2 (North) 28.10.2014 22.09.2015 160 350
3 (East) 28.10.2014 22.09.2015 224 350
4 (South) 28.10.2014 22.09.2015 143 350

423 Particulate Monitoring Results

Sample Location

Limit values of CAFE

Directive 2008/50/EC
AD1 AD2 Z:A :::r AYGIEL
Recycling Facility Rehab Facility Limit Mean
PM10 PM2.5 PM10 pg/m? PM2.5 PM10 PM2.5
pg/m? Hg/m? Hg/m? ug/m? pg/m?
01/07/2015 30 7 18 50 .
02/07/2015 8 2 5 50 .
03/07/2015 23 5 10 50 .
04/07/2015 22 8 21 50 .
05/07/2015 12 5 11 50 .
06/07/2015 11 3 9 50 .
07/07/2015 7 3 7 50
08/07/2015 12 4 10 50
09/07/2015 11 5 10 50 i
Average 15 5 1 - 25
Min 7 2 5 . .
Max. 30 8 21 - B

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04 doc

Page 83

Page 11 of 33
Formal Issue



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

IE311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
GROUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015
4.3 Conclusion

The annual average readings (Table 4.4) for all monitoring locations are below the recommended
“Technical Instructions on Air Quality Control — TA Luft’ 2002 standard guideline of 350mg/m?%/day
over an annual period. The largest annual average reading of 319mg/m*“/day on the westerly
boundary location for dust deposition exists for the site since monitoring commenced in October
2014.

One elevated reading of 762mg/m?day was recorded in September on the western boundary (D1)
from the twelve results over the three monthly period. The September reading was over twice the
recorded value of the other monitoring points in September. Due to the confined construction area,
excavations undertaken adjacent to the monitoring station is the likely cause for the elevated
reading. A water bowser operated to mitigate dust in dry weather conditions. Ali vehicles leaving
the construction areas of the site pass through a wheel cleansing area prior to entering the local
road network.

The maximum PM,o concentration recorded at sensitive locations was 30pg/m3 which is below the
limit value for PMy, of 50pg/m3 over a 24hour period. The maximum PM, s concentration recorded
at sensitive location was 8pg/m3. There is no 24 hour limit to compare PM, s monitoring results to.
The maximum PM, s concentration over 24 hours of 8pg/m3 is below the recommended annual
mean limit of 25pg/m3. This monitoring confirms site activities are causing no elevated particulate
matter at offsite sensitive locations.

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04 doc Page 12 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 84



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

IE0311183-22-RP-00486, Issue A
GroOuUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046
19 November 2015

5 Surface Water

A scheme for monitoring suspended solids in surface waters adjacent to the site is placed for the
construction phase of the project, as per the EIS requirements and in accordance with An Bord
Pleanala Order-29S.EF2022. Refer to Figure 2.1 in Section 2 for the monitoring locations.

5.1 Monitoring Method

Monitoring was carried out by an independent laboratory technician and overseen by the project
environmental consultant in accordance with ‘Dublin Waste to Energy - Construction Phase
Monitoring Scheme' September 2009.

5.2 Monitoring Results

Analysis of suspended solids in surface water at the four surface water monitoring locations was
undertaken.

The suspended solids results for July to September 2015 are presented in Table 5.1.

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 13 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 85



anss| jeuuoy
£€ Jo 1 sbed

20p'40 ¥ 9¥00-dd-22-€81 1 LOEOT

6¥l

¥eL

vk

9l'el

€981 R €290

050} —S€'60

G1/80/cC

bw

(stoz
Jequiaydag)
spllos
papuadsng

£l

ol

0L

95z} 9 L4100

€E'6) '8 55:90

Gl'11- Y60

Sh8owe

/6w

{510z 3snbny)
Spijos
papuadsng

[418

ELL

SEl

v8l

0S5k

e

9z'12% 160

€961 9 GZ2:€0

05°€1-0€:60

SLL0/LZ

/6w

{5102 Ainr)
spljog
pepuadsng

N
GE'80,02.€5

N909.02.£S

N909.02.£S

N965.02.£5

NG65.02.ES

NCE'82.02.£5

Bujypon

ELITEYLTEN ]
puo

ML020Cl.9

MOV3.L19

MOV9.LL.9

MOLLZLA.9

MOLLCL.9

MS6'¥5L1.9

Bugjse3

9JUuBIaeY
puo

ued ainen
umopSH

(deap) so1d
-)se3 Aemsey

plcoiMs

(a0epns)
1seg Aemujed

s(colms

(deep)
ysep Aemurey

p(zo}ms

{eoeuns)
1sap Aemugeq

s(zolms

Jauueyy
1ajep Bugioo

3plL Mo

3pLL uilH

auw|

|jeq

sjun

uopesoy

Jajaiueied

Page 86

s)insay spIjog papuadsng — BulIO)UOR J8JeAA 80BUNS [L°G dlqel

G102 12quwaAoN 61
9%00-0000-1LdH-AN3-ONd

Y anss| ‘9v00-dy-22-€8L L LEOSI
Ayjoe4 ABisus 0) ssepp ulQnQ
paywy Guuaauibug adoing ejueaod

dnNo#d

Wd



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

M Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A

U PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015

53 Conclusion

in the 3rd Quarter 2015 period the suspended solids ranged from 2 — 244mg/l. The highest level of
suspended solids was recorded at the Cooling Water Channel, SW(01) in July 2015 with a result of
244mgl/l. Baseline monitoring from 2010 — May 2015 ranged from 1 - 508mg/.

Enabling works for site setup to construct the cooling water pump station commenced at end of
June 2015. Construction works of the coffer dam for the cooling water pump station commenced at
the end of July 2015.

During the construction period no elevated suspended solid readings were recorded when
compared against preconstruction baseline readings and previous months. The levels recorded in
August were detected at very low levels compared to other months. Fluctuations in suspended
solids occur due to the intertidal area, urbanised catchment being sampled and water traffic
operating on the waterbody. Therefore variation is expected throughout all samples readings.
Fluctuations in suspended solids are common with levels recorded up to 508mg/t over the
preconstruction monitoring period. During the quarterly monitoring period no elevated suspended
solid readings were recorded compared to previous readings.

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 15 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 87



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A

GrRoOUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015

Appendix A
Noise Data

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 16 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 88



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0046, Issue A
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0046

19 November 2015

Table 1.1: Construction Noise Monitoring

Noise Monitoring

Location

N1 — Rehab Institute

Locations

Description

Outside front gate of Rehab, Roslyn Park

N2 — Seafort Avenue

Footpath adjacent to No. 33 Seafort Avenue

N3 - Beach Avenue

Footpath adjacent to the dividing wall of No. 10 and No. 11 Beach Avenue

N4 — Leukos Road

In front of DCC recycling facility

N5 — Pigeon House Road

Footpath immediately in front of the Coastguard Cottages

N6 — Walkway (Irishtown
Nature Reserve)

Walkway south of the site connecting Sean Moore Park and Irishtown Nature
Reserve

N7 — Western Site Boundary

Midway on the western site boundary

N8 — Northern Site Boundary

Midway on the northern site boundary

N9 — Eastern Site Boundary

Midway on the eastern site boundary

N10 — Southern Site Boundary

Midway on the southern site boundary

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc

Page 17 of 33
Formal Issue

Page 89



anss| jeuuoy
¢ Jo 8| abed

20p'$0 VvV 9¥00-dH-22-€8111L0€03

suoIpuo)

SETNCETTY $32.n0g asio |edjound

(vigp
0LV

(viap
06Y1

(vigp
XepNvl

965 6 €09 | 118 | w1 o€ weynog N | o
WIEo pue 12313 UOREIfEISU) oMo - 5102
’ ) "0S '8y ] yev e o¢ Wwis)som IN
Buixy [98}S - 90 Ainr 460
. . . . . Gi0¢
8.9 8y 618 69 LEL og usynog OIN AINF 460
8}aJouco Joy Buuapnyg -
Bugesado saues) - . . . GL0Z
) 6'6L 1'89 1'E6 A7) LET) 0E wijsey 6N
(dLWMA) Jueld Jusuneal | JoJEMB)SEM Anr yeo
Wied pue Jes|) puasBbury wolj asiou Suwwny - _
uogoaIa |38)§ - 098 88y 8l 9.8 Slol 0e WayuoN 8N AInr W60
uone|E)SUl Jeqay -
[euajew Budxoa)s 4abbi( - . . . . . G102
’ L'eL €45 ¥'e8 1’69 0’60 0e Wi9Jsam IN
[eusjew Buneaeoxa 1a661q - A weo
6L 1'9s g6 | Lo | el 0 wisnos 0IN 5100
uope||ejsul Jeqay - Ainp puzo
|eusjew Buyidyooss 1a661(] -
buployeas Butaia - | zgg g0 gz8 | 889 | 80l € weyse3 N | oo
Apnoy [eusjew Bunyys Bupesado sxonuy sadwing -
Aiened ‘wied i : : : : weuLo 5102
[BUBJEW PUE B}210UCO UM Buiawwe Sxoru] - 8y €08 ¥8L G'es Zy'60 0e YHON 8N Anr puzo
Gunessdo
syony OfY ‘eusiew Buneaeoxs 1ab6i] - . . . . . 5102
oL 9'65 1’18 9.9 G060 0¢ wigisam IN
Bunesado ssues] - Anr puzo

(v)ap
bay

oulll (unw) uonea] N

HElS uopeIng Kiepunog uoyesor

synseay Buloyuopy asIoN AN :panupuo) Z°) dlqel

5102 JBQWIIAON 61
9t00-0000-LdH-AN3-ONd

Y anss| ‘9¥00-d¥-22-€81 L LE03|
Ayoe4 ABiaug o} aysem wiang
pajiwy] Buuaauibug adoing eyueao)

dnoy¥d

Wd

Page 90



anss) [euuoy

€€ Jo 61 9bed 3040V 9100-dY-Z2Z-€81 L LOE0N
yv9 615 918 629 | vzu 0 waignos OIN i
LM woy asiou Bupwwny - Ainf wgZ
Jadaomspeoy -
Bupesado auei) -
uoje|gjsul yomuuo -
azaaig ybis . . . . SL0¢
oS (Eueqew pue ajemuco y buswe oy - | 00 %9 zes g9 | 607l 0¢ wayse3 6N T
Jeusjew Buydyooys Jabbiq -
uoneEIsUL R - | g9 | 7gg gv. | 7% | s 0¢ waluoN N | e
Jeacwayjuonoasa buipjoyeas -
Bunesado syony sadwing -
leajew Bueneoxe sisBBiq - | 569 ¥'85 £'e8 g59 | 102 0 worsop N | g,
uole|EIsu| [39)S -
! . . . . 5102
ges ey 09 9IS T3¥4 0¢ wainog OIN e
Apnoj) ‘wien
[l -
RS gye | g ge9 | zes | w0z | o welsaM IN | ke
sylom Buuapnyg ey - INC wbl
. . . ) . Leuno 5102
LA Woy asiou Buwwny - | €99 g8 6L g9 | zv9l 0¢ ynos OIN o
uole|EISul Jegay -
bupeiado Bupioyeas wioids - | g §99 986 0oL | eeSh 0 wersea N |
azaalq ladoams peoy - b
wbys ‘g Jeusjew Bunyys Bupesado syong Jadwng -
Supeiado seueiy- | 29 | OES gr. | 685 | v0%i 08 woupoN N | e
Gupesado sbu buyd -
duind sja0uc) ‘euslew pue 8jaiouod Y Bumue porL - | - - SORR - o — o 5102
Bunesado sy opy ‘|eusiew buneaeoxa 1abbig - Ainr up)

SUORIPUOY
Jayjeapm

$33In08g as{oN |edjouud

e;n_

(v)ap
06Y71

(v)ap
XY

(v)ap

bov

(upw)
uojeing

uoneIoT

Kepunog

‘oN

uoyed0

ajeq

synsay Buuoyuop 8sIoN AN :panunuo) Z°L AqelL

G102 J2quiaroN 61
9%00-0000-Ldd-ANT-ONd

Y anss| '9v00-d¥-2Z-€81 L LE03I
Ayoeg A61eu3 o) aysep uigng
pajwi Suusewibug adosn3 gluean)

dNOHYO

Wd

Page 91



anss| [ewsoy

£€ Jo 0z 36ed 20p"Y0 Y 9¥00-d¥-2Z-E81 LLOE0I
Aisuiyoew woy wny - . i . . ) ansmsay 5102
’ 6'CS 08y 08L L'lS 0Ll 0e 9N
d LAMM Wwoyy asiou Buiuuiny - ainjeN Ainr 40g
y'E9 g5 gi8 | 900 | eo0z o€ Huosld | SN | e
wien 30IN0S 3SI0U SU} JE B|GIPNE SSIOU LORINIISUOD ON -
‘1eg|) ‘Auung Buissed 1e) - 510z
kiounpew Bupeoy | VEL 9K yes | 869 | IET 0 any yoseg N | gnpoe
JAUIEJUOD PUE BUEJD ‘U0 UIIGNQ WOl 3SI0U punonyoeg -
30n0s asi0u AU e BIgIPNE 3SI0U LOJIASUOD ON = | . o 276 — —_— o . - p w_vou
oljes) peo. JUs}SISuo) - INM w0€
€99 g8 0z | 629 | 620l o€ woynos | O | por%
ladsamspeoy - INf* w0€
Bunesado auei) -
LORE|[E)SUI YIOMLLIOA -
BUSJeW PUE 8)210U00 Yym BuiALLe Syonu] -
e b s.: —_— LH%“ | oeu £19 g16 | oL | sg60 0 wajse3 6N >_mﬁwm
[EACWIB/LI0]I3I8 BUIP|OYeIS -
Bunesado syony Jsadwng - ¥'98 g'ls L'vl S¥e 8160 0e WayHoN 8N zm_ﬁwm
Jeuajew Bupeaeoxa siab661q -
Buipd; -
ol B L9 gs6 | e | weo| o weisopm IN | g
uonejjeisu 99§ - w

SuoiIpuU0) (v)ap (v)ap (viap (vlgp = ounp (uyw) uojeaoy "ON a1eq

Jayieam $92.4n0g 9s|0N [ediouud 0y 06Vl WA bavy el uoneng fiepunog  UONEDO]
synsay Buuojuopy asioN Anp :panunuo) Z°'L dlqel

S10Z 19qWaAoN B
9¥00-0000-Ld¥-ANI-DNd
v enss| ‘gy00-dy-22-€81 L LE0I dnoyo

Ayoey ABisuz o) sjsepm ungng E
paywi] Guusswibu3z adoing gueso)

Page 92



anss| [euLio4

€€ 40 1.z 9bed 20p 0¥ 9¥00-d¥-22-€84 1 LOEOSI
. . . . . G102
0'E§ 208 4: VIS | SV10 0¢ wayjnog OIN 10BNy 020
HORBISUDHOMOA = |y | yey | gee | zoo | ecoo | oe welsom IN L
Apnopy Buixi{ (ea)g - .
e R 5102
44 LS 8.8 g€y | L6l 0€ waynog 0IN JSTBNY 90
UORBIRISUMOMMOA ™ | geg | gug | war | geo | sge | 0 welsam IN e
uogejjejsul Jeqay - 1snbny 490
. . . . ) Sloe

£'89 9'/8 1'6L 99 0sclL 0e wsijnog OIN 1snbny 4,90
uoqe|[ejsul Jegay -
jeusiew Buyidyooys 18661 -

azoalg Bupoyeos bugoaid- | gz, | gee | €6 | 9oL | 94z 0¢ welse3 6N Lo

WbHS espy |eusjew Bupyiys Buresado syony sedwng - “
uonoaIe 93]S - S10C

Bupesado €85 A4 628 4 9e'l) og WIBUHON 8N 1snBny 490
syoru) opy ‘[eusjew Bupeaeoxe Jabbiq -
Bugesad -

WeRAOSSUBIDT | gey | zes | oes | o | ool 0¢ wejsom IN .-
|EUSJEW pUE 8}810U0d UM BuiaLle syon] - 1snbny 490

suoIpuo)
Jayjeapm

(v)ap {viap (vigp  (vigp || 2Wll {urw) uoljeso

saainog astoN Jedisulig v 06v1 U] bovy el uonein( Kiepunog uonedso

synseay Buuoyuopy 8sIoN 1snbny :panunuo) Z°L alqel

G102 JaquaroN 61
9700-0000- Ld¥t-ANT-ONd
Y 8nss| ‘9y00-dy-2Z-€8 1L 1E0T

dNOoYY

Ayoey ABiau3 o) ajsepm UGN E
paywi Guusauibug adoing euenro)

Page 93



anss| jewsoy

€€ Jo Zz abed 20p'y0" ¥ 9P00-d¥-22Z-€81 L LOE03
G102
Sy A4 (414 £y £5°00 0e wisyinog OILN Jsnbny
ri4%
G102
Buippey) - €6y €5y (] £'65 0100 0¢ wajsap IN 1snbny
wjen pue Apnoj Buixid4 [eals - abl
wien pue Apnojn G102
£'69 €68 1'9L 29 1202 0g wiayinog O0IN ysnbiny
wtl
S10¢
uofje|jejsul JomuLiod - 6'¢9 8'LS L'EL 809 ov'6lL 0g wis)sspp IN Jsnbiny
Buixy 1981 - wEl
gL0e
V19 [ArA:] L'y8 069 ge'el 0g wsynog OIN isnbiny
utl
5102
919 A4 G'l6 L9 10°¢l 0E Wwisise] 6N ysnbiny
9)940U09 Joj Buusynys - o€l
- bupesado sauei) -
Hiea pue 1291 (d LMM) Jue|d Juauiea | Jojemalsep 5102
puesBury woy asiou Buiwwny - 0'€9 0'es 1’98 ze9 | 82T 0€ waypoN 8N 1snbiny
uogoaJe [39)S - wEl
uone|jeisul Jeqay - 5102
[euajew Buidyooys 18661Q - 9z 909 144 VL SriL 0¢ Wa)sap IN Jsnbiny
|eusjew Bugeaeaxa Jabbiq - wEl

Suop|puoY o (v)ap (viap  (v)ap (unw) uopeso ‘ON o,
Jayieapm $924n08 asioN |edioulid (viapesn 06v1 “aA] bov) uogeing =~ fiepunog = UONEIOT] 1eQ

synsay Bulojuoyy asioN jsnbny :panunuo) 'L dlqel

S10Z 4aqWanoN 61
9¥00-0000- Ld¥-AN-OWd
v oNnss| ‘gy00-d¥-2Z-€81 1 1€03l dnoud

Apoeg A6reu3 o) sysep wigna m
pajwi Suuaauibug adosng ejuero)

Page 94



anss| jewso4

€€ Jo €7 abed 20p'v0 V 9¥00-d¥-22-€811L0E03
208 (%14 R3] 8'es 0100 0E uisynog OIN Ll
1snbny ;512
6102
66Y (WA 4 829 8.6 0e'ee 0 wigisap IN jsnbny
w0C
Apnofg
‘wieg {1174
# €05 8Ly 1'69 8’65 S1'lT 0E uisyinog 0IN JsnBny
w0Z
uogeyiejsut Buippe;) - 10z
Burxy [9a1s - 1'6Y (4 G'e9 €68 (YA 0e wig)sapm IN 1snbny
syiom Buusynys - w0T
S10¢
8¢9 8y €28 ¥'09 [59+] 0E uisyinog 0IN 1snbny
w8l
dLMM woy asiou Buwwny - 6102
uoneliElsul feqeY - | ggy £0L €06 9eL | SO0l 3 weyseq 6N jsnBny
Bugesado Buipjoyess uuoydis - w8l
Jadeams peoy -
9z90.q 602
Wby A1 eyl Bupys Bupesedo s sedung- | 55 §08 | ¥e9 | Ovol 0 waypoN aN ysnBiny
Bujesado sauei) - 48l
Gunesado sbu buljd - L
dwnd GL0e
2J210U0D ‘feusjeuwl pue 8}aIoucd ujim BuaLe syoni| - 199 029 978 69 ISyl 0e wsjsam IN Jsnbiny
Bunesado syonu} opYy ‘|eusiew Bugeaeaxs siebbiq - w8l

N
uoKes0T]

SUOHIPUO) Aw_ﬁu %m._ﬁ_, ﬁﬂ, Amﬁu (urw) uoljeaoT
FEINEETT $92.n0g 3s|op jedidulid uoielng Aepunog

ajeq

s)nsay Bupopuopy asioN 1snbny :panunuod Z°L ajqel

S10Z 12quianoN 61

9¥00-0000- Ld¥-AN3-ONd

v anss| ‘gp00-dy-ZZ-€81 1 €03l dNouo
Aypey Abisuz o} aysepm ugng

paywi Buuaauibug adoing elueao)

Page 95



anss| jeuuo4

£ Jo vz abed 20p'v0V 9¥00-d¥-2Z-€8LLLOEDI
5102
4%14 8'ey A LSy 8£°00 0e wayjnog OIN Jsnbny
w8t
juejd Jusw)eaJ) JSJEMS)SEM WOY WNH - SL02
uooasa Bulppelo pue [83)S - AL 99 0€L (414 25€C 0e wajssp IN Jsnbny
azo01q Ilem Bunog - wl?
Bis Apno
wbis Apnoio 5102
¥'29 109 80L L'l yeE6l 0e wayinos OIN Jsnbny
wlt
uonoais Buippe|d pue [88)S - 5102
jles Buunod - 9't9 8.8 6L %) 2e0e 0€ WidJsam IN 1snbny
BuiALLe yonu) 8)8Jouo)) - wll
5102
G99 198 A4 L'v9 443 0e waynog OILN Jsnbny
wlt
MM Wuioj asjou Buiwiny -
Bunelado Jadoams peoy - _ Sk0C
1oL (4] L8l 619 6211 0E wisyse3 6N Jsnbny
uone|jgjsul Jegey - wlZ
8zss)q feusjew Buidxools sebBiq -
Jbys ‘Apnojd
Buipjoyeas Buyoaig - G10¢
8]210U0D LM BuALLIE SR - 98 ¥'zs 0's. G'9g SE0l 0e WiaypoN 8N Jsnbny
Bugeisdo sauel) - wie
[euSjeW pue 8}810u0d yym BuiAe syonu| - G102
Bugesado syonu) oy ‘eusiew Buneeaxs 1ebbiq - 159 8'65 5Z8 €9 0004 0E wa)sap IN 1snbny
uoe|jeisul |8a)s -

suopipuo) (viap (vigp (vigp  (vijap  ouil (uiw) uoyean "oN T
Jaljeap s$32.n0g as10N [edioulid wan| 06V =l by uels uoeing fiepunog uofjeao

synsay Bulopuoly asioN ysnbny :panuiuod Z'} ajqeL

G102 JaquianoN 61
9100-0000-Ld¥-AN3-ONd dnouo

v enss| ‘Gy00-dY-ZZ-E8L L LE0T
e AB1au37 o) siseM UIGNa E

paywr] Guuasuibug adoing glueso)

Page 96



anss| jeuuo4

€€ 0 6z abed 20p'¥0 ¥V 9¥00-dM-Z2-€81L10E03
Aisujyoew woy wn - . . . . . ETVELEH 6L0¢
€15 g1 €2L | S¥s | 0E80 0 s oN By 462
dLAMM WoJy asiou Bunuwiny -
a0In0s
aS/0U 84} JE 2JGIPNE 3SIOU LUOJONIISUCI ON -
Bussedien- | 669 V1S 1’56 179 | 1E860 0€ SH uoabld SN E_M%N%N
628819 Asauyoew Buipeoj Jauieiuod pue
Wbys ‘Auung 3UBID ‘10 UIIGNQ WO} 3SI0U punosjoeg -
. R G102
. . ) 0
989 08 1'9L L'Y9 L0} 0t AY Ld33g EN 10BNy 48z
20In0s
asiou AUE JE 8|qIpNE 35I0U UOROMSUOD O - - - 71 - E0L & ony YoiEss N 5102
Jyjes) peol Jusjsisuo) - Jsnbny 482

SuoRIPU0Y
Iyjeaps $32.n0g 3s|0N jediouid

(viap

0y

{viap
06Y71

(viap

sj)Insay Buloyuop esioN isnbny :pesnunuo) Z'L dlqel

(uyw)
uope.ng

uo|e3oT
Arepunog

‘ON

uonean

G102 J9quIsAoN 61
900-0000-Ld¥-AN3-ONd

Y anss| ‘9v00-d¥-2Z-€81 L LEO3I
Ayoey ABisuz o) aysem ugng
paywi Buuasuibug adoing elueaod

dNOHD

Wd

Page 97



anss| [euuo

£¢ J0 9Z abed 20p'¥0 ¥ 9400-d¥-2Z-€81 1 10E03
6102
L'lS €8y L8 €S 65°00 0e wsynos OIN Jaquiaydeg
pul0
SL0c
L'ES 8'0S VeL 625 S1°00 0€ wajsspy IN Jequisideg
fipnopy mZ0
‘wien ‘A
{0 ‘AQ G0z
¥'ss 6'6Y 1'8. (2] 66’61 oe usyinog OLN Jequiaydag
Jue|d Jusuneai] Jajema)sep puasbury waly wny - ul0
uoloaIg [98ls - SL0z
uoge|jejsu| sHomuLod - G'Es 96y 9L v'zs 0v'02 0g wiaisap IN Jaquiadeg
uone|[ejsul Jeqay - sl0
Sloz
089 198 £06 049 oL'Ll 0E wsaynog OIN Jequeidag
=10
mvow
i ! ’ i i wa)se Joquisyde
sinod 81219UCO PUE UONEEISU JBGaY - 8'69 12l 806 9'0L orel ot jse3 6N niw S
azaaiq Jbis Jeusyew Buydyooys 18b6iq -
‘Apnoj9 ‘A Buipjoyeas Bupsai - GLoc
uone|esul Buipper) - [A%] 9'vs 008 L'09 ooch 0E WiaUHoN 8N laquaidag
uodale (93]S - si0
Bunesado syong pv ‘leusiew Gugeaeoxs sabbiq - 510z
Bupesado sauesd - | 8'89 0°6S L6 199 1’60 0e wajsam IN 1aquisidag
JELISJEW pUE 8}aI0u0d Upm BuaLe syoni| - si0

SUORIPUOY (viap (vigp (viap  (vigp  awiy (un) uopeao "ON T

Jayjeaps sannog asioN [ediauiig 241 06v1 S| IR uelg uopeing fiepunog uoljeaoy
S)INsay BulojIUO| 8SION Jaquia)das :panupuod g°| alqel

S10Z 19qWSAON 61
9100-0000-Ld¥-ANT-ONd dnouo

Vv anss| 'gy00-d¥-2Z-€84 L LEO
Aypoey ABisuz o) sysep unang E

paywi] Buuasuibug adoing eyueao)

Page 98



anss| |[euog

€€ 0 Lz abed 20p'40 ¥ 9¥00-dM-Z2-€E8LLL0E0T
. Buibuis spag -
azaalq Jybis R . . . . | anasay S10¢
pue ‘Auuns *kig dLMM woey asiou Bujwwny %14 g'sy 6LL 0’6y 00zt 0¢ ainey 9N Joquaidag ug0
siab6ip ‘sucoeaq BuisiaAsl ‘a|qipNe asiou LORIMIISUCD [BIBLSE) -
. . . . . 6 S102
0'LS 0'eS 064 1’85 y¥'sl o¢ SH uoabid SN Joquiaidag ¢80
30in0s asiou  AUe Je 9|q|pne 8s|ou LOINASUCD ON -
azaaiq ybys jueujwoud Lod uygng WwoJy asio - . . . . . G102
. ; 299 09 G598 L't9 0L'st 0t Py soyna N
pue ‘Auuns *fug punoiyoeq ut Jo Buissed oyes} peos Jug)sisuoy - Iaquiaidag 80
. . . . . 5102
g'LS oLy ¥SL T'ss 521 o€ aAy yosag EN 10qW3Ideg |80
azaalq Jybys . . . . . 5102
pue ‘Auuns ‘Aig ¥'zs 6'6v £e8 0'8S 6EEl 0¢ aAY Hojeag N 1oquWaldas 480
20Un0s 9siou AUE Je 9|qIpNe 8SI0U LONINJSUoD ON -
Aq asofo Buiyjesm suelsapad - . ) . . ) 5102
) ’ 6'8L £'65 506 9¢L 1941 0¢ qeyay IN
oles} peal juajsisuog - Jaquwajdag wgo
. . . . 5102
965 0'es g'e6 g't9 (XAY ot waynog OIN soqudag 480
sinod 8}2J0U0d pUE UOe|[EjSU) Jegay -
bupioyeosBugoeia- | |z, | g69 | 998 | LKL | 9vOl 08 weyse3 YR
azaauq jy6ys uone|ejsu; Guippe -
pue ‘fuuns ‘ug sdwnd yym Buunod ayaiouco - o0z
uonoaia [93)S - €95 0¥S 61 o 4] 6001 113 wayyoN 8N J8qaldes 80
Bunesado syony opy ‘feusiew Bupeaeaxs Jabbiq -
[BUSJEW PUE 8)3IUCD jim Buiawwe sxoni - . . . . . SL0¢C
’ (A4 ] T'65 988 1’69 2e60 o¢ wiajsap IN
sjeuajew Guny) seurls - Jaquisidag 480

SuoIIpuoy
13yjeaph

$32.n0S asioN jedjouLd

(vigp
06Y1

(vigp
Y

=]

(ujw)
uojjeang

uo|}eao
Aiepunog

oN
uopes0

s)Insayj bulojuoy 8sioN Jaqualdas :panuguocd 'L dlqel

S10¢ JaquanoN 61

900-0000-LdH-ANI-OWd

v anss| ‘9y00-dYy-22-€81 L 1€03
Ayoed ABieu3 0) s)sepm LIGNa
paywy buuasuibug adosng ejueac)

dNOHYY

Wd

Page 99



anss| [euo,

€€ jo gz 9bed 20p'y0 ¥ 9¥00-dH-Z2-€811LOE0T
SLoC
90L 289 G'es 089 vZel 1} lwisjsed 6N Jequiaydag
JLMM woy asiou Buiwwny - e
YIOMULIO} PUB UODE}[EISU; JBgaY -
Bujpjoyeds Bunoas3 - GLoz
wey uoRoale [23)g - 1’19 £'96 1’08 029 or'el 0¢ WAYHoN 8N _B_“N%w
‘sea|d ‘lig Bupesado Buipjoyeos uuoydys -
Jadaams peoy -
{eusjew Bugyys Bugesado syong Jadwing - 10z
s|euajew Bunyy ssuel) - 029 V€9 198 8'e9 [4¥A43 0E Ww3jsem IN Jaquisideg
dwnd aja10u07) ‘(EUSjEW PUE 3jaJouca uym Buiawe syoni) - wll

Bunesado syoru; oy ‘[eusiew Buneaeoxs siebbiq -

5102
£'es 108 869 G'6s 0v'€0 o€ waynog 0N Jequiidag
wkl

Gi02
¥'zs 006 gL A% 20'e0 0€ wajsapm IN laquisideg
whl

._mw_“w:
‘wien *Ag {274

= el JuBeal) sojemaisep puosBupy woy awny - | 7ES 925 95, 9vs | Zviz 0¢ waynos 0IN 1aquiadag
uojpaig 93]S - o
UoNE|RISU| YOMULIOS - S0z

uofelie)s easy - | £'Z8 g6y 619 vos | sz 0¢ wajsapm IN ioquiajdes
uope|jejsu) Buippey3 - w0l

-oN

SUORIPUOY {upur) uoyeao uoyeso’]
Jsyjeap $234n08 asjo [edisuud uojjeing Kepunog

s)nsay Buuojuopy asioN Jaquisldss :psnuluo) Z°| dqelL

G102 JaquanoN 61
9v00-0000-Ld¥-ANI-OWd dNOoYd

<m=mm_.mvoo-n_m-mm-mm_‘:‘mow_
b___umu_>92m99mm>>=__n=c E
paywi} Suuasuibug adoin3] ejueso)

Page 100



anss| jeuoy

£¢ Jo 6Z abed 20pv0 V¥ 9¥00-d¥H-2¢2-€81 1 10€03
. . . . SL0¢
806 (A1 L8 TEs 0500 o€ waynog OIN 1equiaidag ug)
. . . . . 5102
¥'ss 0'es 0yl 9vs 5100 0¢ wiajsam IN 18qWaIdas g}
fpnoj ‘wie
gos | o6y | o0z | 6 | oviz o€ waynog OIN o ol
uopeyejsul buippe|) -
UOIJB|[E}SUI YIOMULIO} pUB JBqay - . . . . . Si0e
028 }'GS oL A4 0zee o¢ wasam IN
uogdal3g [BAs - Jaquaydes y/ |}
. . . i . SL0C
€49 69 96L 6€9 S0vl 0E wayinog OIN Jequaidag uz )
"aAoqy sY

SUORIPUOY
layieap

$92In0S asjoN [edjautid

(viap

0

(vige | (vigp
06V xenv-)

(v)ap
wc(-—

s)nsay Bulojuop asioN Jaquaydas :psnuguo Z°| alqel

(uyw}

uopeIng

uoneao

Kiepunog

‘oN

uoYeI07

5102 J2qWaAoN 61
9t00-0000-LdH-ANI-OWd

v @nss| ‘'gy00-dy-22-€84 L LE0TI
Aypoey ABisu3 o} aysem uigng
payw Suusauibug adoing eueAr0)

dNOYD

Wd

Page 101



anss| jeuog

20p'¥0 V 9¥00-dH-Z2-€84110€03

£¢ J0 og abed
6102
G'eS g'is ¥e9 108 8¥'10 0e usynos OIN Jequisydag
w0t
411174
jue|d Jususjeal) JJEMB)SEM WOY) SWNH - L'¥S ¥LS V6l IS rANNI) 0e wajsam IN laquisjdes
azealq uonoaia Buippeyo pue [99)g - w0E
m 1]
Wbis ‘1esn G102
0°Es 108 9?9 LS 0zee 0e weignos OLN Jaquejdeg
w6C
S10Z
uonaaia Buippejo pue 58S - s 1414 0'€L 808 95'eC 0E waysapm IN Iaquisydas
[em Buunod aja1ou0) - w62
{4
£'€9 295 96, £09 6aol 0e weanos OLN Jsquisydag
174
6102
1’69 299 v'v8 189 0z0L o€ wejse3 6N Jaquisideg
az651q dLMM Lwoy astou Buiwwny - bz
1ybys ‘iean Bunyeiado Jjadeams peoy -
uone|[ejsul Jeqay - GLoC
leusyew Buydyools Jabbiq - €19 19§ 86, 866 69’60 0E WiayUoN 8N Isquisydag
sjeuajews Buny seue.) - h 74
[eus}EwW pue 8}aIouod yum Bulawe syon] - G102
uoneyejsul [9a)s - €89 129 058 299 0160 oe Wwig)sap IN Jaquisideg
Bunesado syonu) opy ‘[eusjew Buneaeoxs Jabbig - whe

suop|puoy

Jayjeam $894n0G asioN [edjauld

{viap

vy

(v)ap
06Y71

{viap
xn=<J

{(v)ap

vuj

s)nsay Buuojuoly asioN Jaquisidas :psnupuod Z°L dlqel

uo1}eso”

Kiepunog

“oN

uonesoT

ajeq

S10¢ JaquanoN 61
9¥00-0000-LdH-ANI-OWd

v @nss| '9p00-dy-22-€81 L LE03
Ayoey ABisu3 o} A)sep UNGNT
pajpwi Buuaauibug adoing euerod

dNOHD

Wd

Page 102



anss| [euLo4

€€ 4o Lg sbed 20p 40"V 9¥00-dH-22-€8 144 10E03

vy 9z 8z 62 ol 16} ZLL | L¥6 0.8 [ 629 |weuinos | 6z0L SLOZ/L0/0E

vE ve 0L 598 006 0z g1, | wesem | tvv80 SL0Z/Z0/0E

v 62 [ \E [ 164 Ziy | L6 0.8 o 629 |wemnos | vzl SL02/L0/EC

I3 1€ 0L 598 006 0¢ 860 | waisem | L0zl S102/20/EC

e 0z 1z z [ 161 v | e 048 05 815 |weunos | zelZ SL02/201%)

€2 73 oL 598 006 05 Z€5_ | weysep | 2502 SLOZ/L0/vL

€V iz 62 62 oL 161 v | e 0.8 [ 1€9  |weynos | zLol SL0ZIL0/VL

9z 9z [ 508 006 Sl G99 | woisem | 62l GLOZ/L0/vL

£E 81 6L 0z [ 161 ZLL | L6 0.8 oy 15 |wewnos | €612 S102/20/60

8l m oL 598 006 o ver | welsem | i1iZ G102/40/60

St 62 1€ zE [ 161 v | Lve 0/8 ot 659 |weqnos | |LEL G1L0Z/L0/60

L€ 1€ oL 598 006 0z 169 | weisem | 0v'60 51.02/20/60

8y ¢ vE e ol 161 ZhL | 1v6 0.8 7 20, |weynog | zvrtl 5102/20/20

I3 1€ [ 598 006 7 9'/9 | Waysepm | G0:60 5102/20/20
gu oot Eﬁw_z sowneT | yoeeg [Hoeg | o P gepu evﬂ”_z sowne | yoeeg | pojeeg | SN
u0eBid qeyey I qeysy

{w) uonesoy {uiws
(v)gp ) 92IN0S 8SI0U pue
juaunsnipe uoijes0] Huuopuow
Aepunoq
usamiag agueisiy  aSIoN

{u pg bae) (viap wat Aiepunog

asiop) si0ydasas aaljisuas 1Sasold je |aA3| aSioN paeindjed - UDIEJ0] S2UNOS BSIOU PUB UOIB00] J0J0809s UBlamiaq adue;sig

{Z°z 4 uonosg) esIoN: | Yed — salis uado pue UopINIISUOd
UO |OJ)UOD UOHBIGIA PUB asiou 10y 8onoeld JO 8poD #10Z:LV+:6002:L-822S S9). SInsay Bulojuopy uogenoe) |aAeT asiou Alnp :¢°| ajqel

610 JaquanoN 61
9¥00-0000~ LdY-ANT-OWd
v anss| ‘9p00-dy-2Z-€81 L 1€03| dnouyv

Ayoed ABreu3 o) ajsep unang
paywin Bupssuibug adoing eluea0)

Page 103



anssj [euoy

€€ Jo z¢ abed 20p¥0 ¥ 9¥00-du-2cZ-€81 L 10E03
e [T Ll il oL 161 L2l L¥6 0.8 09 LGy |weyog |  8ei00 5102/80/8
0z 6l oL 699 006 05 g6y | waisam | zsiee 510Z/80/L2
o IE [ £ oL L6 2Ll L¥6 0.8 09 119 [weymos | E6L 5102/80/2
9t 9¢ 0l 598 006 0L 2€9 | waisem | zE02 5102/80/L2
i 2 [ [ [ 161 2Ll L¥6 0.8 0s 1y9  |waymos | w121 5102/80/42
62 6C 0L 599 006 [ ve9 |waisem | 0001 5102/80/.2
I3 z € (53 [ 161 2Ll 1¥6 0.8 05 g'es |waunog | 01:00 5102/80/LC
9z 9z 0l 588 006 72 8.6 | weisam | OE€Z 5102/80/0
X2 82 62 [ [ 161 2Ll L¥6 0.8 05 g6 |wauinos [ 6112 S102/80/02
[ £2 i 598 006 o €66 | weisem [ 1202 5102/80/02
6¢ [74 Sz 92 oL 161 iTil L¥6 0.8 [ v09  [wsymog [ 1EGL 5102/80/8)
1€ 0f 0l 598 006 0 6v9 [waisam | 15'vL 5102/80/8)
(3 [ 8l 8l [ 161 2L L¥6 0.8 oL £Gy | weyinos | £5:00 S10Z/80/L
[3 £2 [ 598 006 05 €66 | weisam | 01:00 S102/80/71
S [ [ 2 [ 16} 2Ll L¥6 0.8 05 129 |waymog | sz'0z S102/80/EL
62 62 0L 598 006 o 809 |weisem | 0v'6L G10Z/80/EL
05 [ [ £ oL [ 2Ll L¥6 0.8 09 069 |weymog | SEEL 510Z/80/EL
32 £ [ 598 006 09 1L |waisam | spiL SL0Z/80/EL
or [F3 2 Z 0l 161 Jay! L¥6 08 05 126 [waunog [ Gi:Lo 5102/80/20
62 8z 0l 598 006 of 209 | waisem | 6Ei00 5102/80/20
iy (3 €8 [ oL 161 1Tl L¥6 08 05 g€9 |waymog | LL'6L 5102/80/90
ZE 3 j oL 598 006 [ G't9 | wasem | 856l 510Z/80/90
o [F3 [ iz [ 161 2Ll L¥6 0.8 0z 9vg  [wayos [ 052l 5102/80/90
1E 0f [T c98 006 [ 01, |weisem | 0011 5102/80/90
pyesnoy | Hed syl py esnoy | Hed anyisu
wosbiy | MMEN | SOMNST | yoseq | HoEes | o o woobly | MMEN | sownal [ yosed | WoRes | g g
UMOSLY umolysyl

{w) uoneaoy (uiw

(v)ap (w) ao1nos asiou pue  pg bae)
juauysnipe uoneso; Buuoyivow  (v)ap
Aepunoq e
uaamiaq aouelsig  8SION

Asepunog
as

(nw g bae) {v)gp [ena

asioN) S101da0al aAllSUIS 1SISO|D 18 [erd] aSION PaIeINdeD RS UoIE30| 82INOS BSI0U PUB LOIEJ0} J0}daJ8] Udam]aq aaueisig

{z'z 4 uonoag) esioN: | Hed — sajis uado pue UojIoNJISUOD UO |01JU0D
UOPBIQIA PUE SIou Jo aonoeld J0 8po)) ¥10Z:LY+:6002:1-8225 S1). Snsay Buuojuopy uonenojed |aas1 asiou jsnbny :panuiuo) ¢} siqel

S10Z 19quianoN 61
9%00-0000-Ld¥-AN3-SWd dnoyo

Vv anss| ‘9¥00-dy-22-€81 1 LEOT
Ayoe4 ABisu3 o) aysep uang E

paywi Buuaauibug adoing elueacd

Page 104



anss| jeuog

€€ jo gg abeg 0p'v0 VvV 9+00-d¥-22-€81 L LOEO3I
€ Il 8l 6l oL 161 L2l L¥6 048 oy L05  |weynos | 8pil0 51L02/60/0€
62 14 0L 598 006 08 vy | weisem | ZLiLO 510Z/60/0€
€€ 8l 6l 0z oL 161 LThl 146 08 oF 15 |wayinog | oz'Ze S102/60/62
[F3 [12 [ 598 006 08 805 | waisem | 952z 5102/60/6C
[ 82 0¢ [3 [ 161 LZiL L¥6 0.8 05 £09 |waynog! ssoL S102/60/72
2 8Z oL 698 006 0z 799 |waisem [ o1i60 S102/60/+Z
i€ [¥2 €2 €2 [ 16} L2l Lv6 0.8 0s ZES |weynog [ 05:00 SL0Z/60/81
€2 £2 0L 598 006 (12 9ps | wasem | G100 5102/60/81
9€g ¥4 zz £2 oL [ JEAT! L¥6 0.8 [ 625 |weynos| ov'iz S10Z/60/L1
[74 €2 [ 598 006 2 2S5 |wasem | 0Z'2C SL0Z/60/LL
Sp 3 LE 2 0L 16} 2Lt L¥6 0.8 (2 6€9 |weymnog | SO'vL 5102/60/L1
[ [ 0L 598 006 05 €9 | waysem | ziZl S10Z/60/L)
I3 72 [¥3 vz [ 161 L2iL Lp6 08 o 665 |weymnos | ot'€0 S10Z/60/L1
6L 61 [ 598 006 [ ZES | wasem | Z0'€0 5102/60/L L
[ 8l 0z 0z [ L6} LZhi L¥6 0.8 [ opg  |waynog | Zr'lZ 510Z/60/01
61 81 0L 598 006 o v0os |weysem | SzZ2 G102/60/0L
[14 2 62 62 oL 161 L2iL L¥6 0.8 [ g9 Jwaymog | €z'LL 5102/60/80
3 L€ 0L 598 006 [ 169 |wasem | ze:60 5102/60/80
13 6l Iz 2 0L 161 L2LL L¥6 0.8 or £€5  |waymog | S5:00 510Z/60/20
61 8l 0L 598 006 0t 625 | waisem | S1:00 5102/60/20
o 0z z [74 0L L6} JEAY" 16 0.8 oy Lps  |waymos | G56L 5102/60/L0
[ [ oL 598 006 0f vyes |wasem | ovoz 5102/60/L0
(2 6C og [ oL 161 L2l L¥6 0.8 0 059 |waynos | OLLL 5102/60/10
23 3 [ 598 006 [ 199 | waysam | 1160 510Z/60/10
Ned Med
ESMN:M: aneN | soynet | yaeeq | wojees ﬂ«“ﬁﬂ_ ESMMM: _M“.«”u: : soyne | yoeeg | Hojees nnsm«_”s

(w) uonesoy (urw

: 951n0s asiou pue g baet)
A
(ww og bae) (v)gp |ane (w) e N T epunog

uawisnipe 3y
Aiepunoq |na NS
uaam)ag adueisiq  BSION

SI0N) s10]d808) SMISUSS 1SISO|D B |and| BSION Palenaed Bujuaalog uUOoH}B20| 82JN0OS 3SIOU pUB UOHEDD| 101da0a1 uaaamieq aJuelsiq

{z'z 4 uonoag) asioN:| Hed — sajis uado pue UORONJISUOD UO |03U0D
UOIBIGIA PUB 8Siou Joj 8onoeld JO 8pOJ ¥10Z:LV+:6002:1-822S SA)., Siinsay Buliojuopy uonenoje) [aAs1] asiou Jaquialdas :panuguod g7} d|qel

102 JoquuanoN 6L
0-0000- LI~ AN-
9¥00-0000- Ld¥-ANI-SWd dnouo

<m=mm_.mvoo.n_m.ww.mm—:mow_
b___um"_>m._w:m99mm>>=__n=c
pajwi Guuesuibug adoing elueaod

Page 105



Page 106



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 24th June 2015
	4 Low Carbon Cement - Andrew McGrane
	5 Climate Change Strategy
	6 Waste Policy
	Litter Managment Plan Update Report
	Household Waste Collection Regulations Report

	7 Response to Community Gain Fund Report - Joe McCarthy
	8 Dublin Waste to Energy update report



